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Independent Auditors Report 
To the Members of lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as "the Group"}, and its associates, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 
March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based 
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries 
as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 
of the Group and its associates as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive 
loss, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of 
the "Other Matters· section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of 
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Revenue Recognition - Web Services 

See Note 2.3(d) and 19 to consolidated financial statements 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 

The Group generates revenue primarily from In view of the significance of the matter we applied 
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web services and follows a prepaid model for 
its business. 

Revenue from web services is recognised over 
the period of the contract as and when the 
Group satisfies performance obligations by 
actually rendering the promised services to its 
customers. 

These services are delivered using IT systems 
which manage very high volume on daily basis 
and generate reports from which the Group 
recognises revenue, and hence there is 
inherent risk around the existence and 
accuracy of revenue recognition. 

We have identified revenue recognition from 
web services as a key audit matter because of 
the significance of web services revenue to the 
financial statements and its recognition based 
on high volume of data generated by internal IT 
systems. 

Goodwill Impairment 

the following audit procedures in this area, among 
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence: 

i. We assessed the appropriateness of the revenue 
recognition accounting policy and its compliance with 
applicable accounting standards. 

ii. We evaluated the design and implementation of 
key internal financial controls and operating 
effectiveness of the relevant key controls with 
respect to existence and accuracy of revenue 
recognition on selected transactions. 

iii. We, with the involvement of IT specialists, 
evaluated the design, implementation and operating 
effectiveness of management's general IT controls 
and key application controls over the Group's IT 
systems which govern revenue recognition, including 
access controls, controls over program changes and 
interfaces between different systems. 

iv. We selected a sample of transactions using 
statistical sampling and performed tests of details 
including reading the contract, identifying 
performance obligation and its link with actual 
rendition to assess whether the criteria for revenue 
recognition are met. 

v. We tested completeness and accuracy of web 
services revenue and collection from underlying 
relevant source documents generated by IT systems 
with the underlying accounting records. 

vi. We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

See Note 6A to consolidated financial statements 

The key audit matter 

The Group had recognised goodwill related to 
the business acquistion of Busy lnfotech 
Private Limited and Livekeeping Technologies 
Private Limited, amounting to INR 4,122.34 
million and INR 420.38 million respectively, 
during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

Goodwill has been allocated to the Busy 
lnfotech Private Limited and Livekeeping 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

In view of the significance of the matter we applied 
the following audit procedures in this area, among 
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence: 

i. We evaluated the design and implementation and 
also tested the operating effectiveness of key 
internal financial controls implemented by the Group 
in relation to impairment testing of goodwill. 
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Technologies Private Limited cash-generating 
units (CGUs). 

The annual impairment testing of goodwill is 
considered to be a key audit matter due to the 
complexity of the accounting requirements and 
the significant judgement required in 
determining the assumptions to be used to 
estimate the recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount of the CGUs, which is 
based on the higher of the value in use or fair 
value less costs to sell, has been derived from 
discounted forecast cash flow model. The 
model uses several key assumptions, including 
estimates of future revenue, operating costs, 
terminal value growth rate and the weighted­
average cost of capital (discount rate). 

ii. We evaluated the Group's valuation methodology 
applied in determining the recoverable amount of 
CGUs in accordance with applicable Ind AS. Further, 
we also assessed the objectivity and independence 
of the specialists involved in the process. 

iii. We evaluated the appropriateness of assumptions 
applied to key inputs of the cash flow forecasts 
including expected revenue growth rates, terminal 
growth rate and discount rate. 

iv. We engaged valuation specialists to assess the 
appropriateness of valuation methodology used and 
key inputs such as Weighted Average Cost of Capital 
(WACC) rate, terminal growth rate and terminal 
value for the determination of the recoverable 
amount of each CGU. Further, we also compared the 
recoverable amount determined above with the 
carrying value of CGU. 

v. We performed our own sensitivity analysis, which 
included assessing the effect of reasonably possible 
reductions in growth rates and forecast cash flows to 
evaluate the impact on the currently estimated 
headroom for the Busy lnfotech Private Limited and 
Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited CGUs. 

vi. We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the 
models. 

vii. We evaluated the adequacy of disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements, including 
disclosures of key assumptions, judgements and 
sensitivities. 

Valuation of investments in associates and other entities 

See Note 7 and 8 to consolidated financial statements 

The key audit matter 

The Group has significant investments in 
associates and other entities amounting to INR 
2,731.67 million and INR 2,504.81 million 
respectively, as at 31 March 2024. 

Management keeps track of all investments in 
reference to their financial performance. In 
addition, management also performs: 

i. Review of indicators of impairment (if any) on 

How the matter was addressed in our audit 

In view of the significance of the matter, we applied 
the following audit procedures in this area, among 
others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence: 

i. We evaluated the design and implementation and 
also tested the operating effectiveness of key 
internal financial controls implemented by the Group 
in relation to valuation of investments in associates 
and other entities. 

Page 3 of 15 
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investments in associates at regular intervals 
and performs impairment testing if any 
indicators are noted. 

ii. Fair valuation of investments in other entities 
which are measured at fair value through profit 
and loss ("FVTPL"). 

Significant judgements are involved to 
determine the key assumptions used for the 
purpose of impairment testing/ fair valuation, 
such as revenue growth, discount rates, etc. 
The aforesaid activity of impairment testing/ fair 
valuation is highly dependent on the 
assumptions and other inputs considered to 
carry out such activity. 

We have identified valuation of investments in 
associates and other entities as a key audit 
matter because of the complexity involved in 
determination of key assumptions and 
judgements for the purpose of impairment 
testing/ fair valuation of respective 
investments. 

Other Information 

ii. We evaluated the Group's valuation methodology 
applied in determining the fair value ("recoverable 
amount") in accordance with relevant applicable Ind 
AS. Further, we also assessed the objectivity and 
independence of the specialists involved in the 
valuation process. 

iii. We evaluated the appropriateness of assumptions 
around the key drivers of the cash flow forecasts 
such as revenue growth rates and terminal growth 
rate. 

iv. We also assessed the valuation methodology for 
recent market transactions and key assumptions 
adopted in the cash flow forecasts considering 
current economic scenario, including retrospective 
reviews to prior year's forecasts against actual 
results. 

v. We engaged valuation specialists to assess the 
appropriateness of valuation methodology and 
market driven assumptions used for assessment of 
the valuation of investments. 

vi. We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the 
models. 

vii. We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements, including 
disclosures of key assumptions, judgments and 
sensitivities. 

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company's annual report, but 
does not include the financial statements and auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/audit reports 
of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give 
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs. consolidated pro os other comprehensive 
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income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including 
its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management 
and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection 
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of 
the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of each 
company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. 
as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or 
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supeNision and performance of the audit 
of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which 
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph 
(a) of the section titled "Other Matters" in this audit report. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

a. We did not audit the financial statements of five subsidiaries (including its subsidiary), whose financial 
statements reflects total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 2,210.49 million as at 31 
March 2024, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 54. 71 million and net cash 
outflows (before consolidation adjustments) amounting to INR 5.61 million for the year ended on that 
date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been 
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of 
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work 
done and the reports of the other auditors. 
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b. The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of net loss (and other comprehensive 
income) of INR 403.94 million for the year ended 31 March 2024, as considered in the consolidated 
financial statements, in respect of eight associates, whose financial information have not been audited 
either by us or by other auditors. These unaudited financial information have been furnished to us by 
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to 
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates, and our report in terms of sub­
section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely 
on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial information are not material to the 
Group. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to the financial information 
certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of 
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other 
auditors, as noted in the "Other Matters" paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the matters stated in the paragraph 
2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated 
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
as on 01 April 2024 and 02 April 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in 
India, and on the basis of written representations received by the management from directors of 
its eight associate companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies 
and its associate companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 
are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and 
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies 
incorporated in India, to the extent applicable, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
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refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other 
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the "Other Matters" 
paragraph: 

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 
2024 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates. Refer Note 37 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

b. The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024. 

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies and associate companies 
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2024. 

d (i) The management of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies 
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have 
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the 
best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 12(3) to the consolidated 
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company, its 
subsidiary companies and associate companies incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies incorporated in India ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The management of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies 
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have 
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies respectively that, to the 
best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 12(3) to the consolidated financial 
statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and 
associate companies incorporated in India from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate companies incorporated in India 
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(ii i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, 
contain any material misstatement. 

e. The final dividend paid by the Holding Company during the year, in respect of the previous year 
ended 31 March 2023, is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to 
payment of dividend. As stated in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to 
the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in 
accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend. 

f. Based on our examination, which included test checks, and that performed by the respective 
auditors of the subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial 
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statements have been audited under the Act, except for the instances mentioned below, the 
Holding company, and subsidiaries have used accounting softwares for maintaining its books of 
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. 

the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the database level to 
log any direct data changes for the accounting softwares used for maintaining its books of 
account. 

the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the application level of 
the accounting software used for maintaining its books of account for the period from 1 April 
2023 to 27 January 2024 for one of the subsidiary company. Further, audit trail (edit log) 
facility was not enabled for full year in relation to certain master data records of such 
accounting software. 

the accounting softwares relating to revenue did not have the feature of audit trail (edit log) 
facility in respect of one of the subsidiary company. 

the feature of recording of audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting 
software used for maintaining its books of accounts for the period from 1 April 2023 to 30 
June 2023 for one of the subsidiary company. 

the feature of recording of audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for the accounting 
software used for maintaining its books of accounts for the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 
May 2023 for four subsidiary companies. 

Further, for the periods where audit trail (edit log) was enabled and operated, during the course 
of our audit, we and respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries did not come across 
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 
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C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports 
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which were not audited 
by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act The associate 
companies are private limited companies and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the 
provisions of section 197(16) are not applicable to the associate companies. The remuneration paid 
to any director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies is not in excess of the limit laid 
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details 
under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

Place: Noida 

Date: 30 April 2024 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022 

Kanika Kohli 

Partner 

Membership No.: 511565 

ICAI UDIN:24511565BKFTCN4621 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated 
Financial Statements of lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited for the year ended 31 
March 2024 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 reports of the Holding company and subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
and included in the consolidated financial statements. 

The above does not include comments, if any, in respect of the following entities as the CARO 
report relating to them has not been issued by its auditor till the date of principal auditor's report. 

Name of the entities CIN Subsidiary/ JV/ 
Associate 

IB MonotaRO Private Limited U52609DL2020PTC366962 Associate 

Mobisy Technologies Private U72900KA2008PTC045157 Associate 
Limited 

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of six associate companies 
incorporated in India, CARO is not applicable: 

Name of the entities CIN Subsidiary/ JV/ 
Associate 

Shipway Technology Private U72300HR2015PTC056319 Associate 
Limited 

Truckhall Private Limited U60221WB2016PTC217183 Associate 

Agillos E-commerce Private U52300KA2016PTC092938 Associate 
Limited 

Edgewise Technologies U72200KA2015PTC078474 Associate 
Private Limited 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private U74110KA2018PTC110858 Associate 
Limited 

Adansa Solutions Private U7 4999WB 1973PTC028813 Associate 
Limited 
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Financial Statements of lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited for the year ended 31 
March 2024 (Continued) 

Place: Noida 

Date: 30 April 2024 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

Kanika Kohli 

Partner 

Membership No.: 511565 

!CAI UDIN:24511565BKFTCN4621 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial 
statements of lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Opinion 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have 
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and 
such companies incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies and its associate 
company, as of that date. 

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of subsidiary companies, as were audited by the other auditors, the 
Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companies, have, in 
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such 
internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the 
essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance 
Note"). 

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors 
of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial 
statements of India MART lnterMESH Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Continued) 

below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Other Matters 

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to five subsidiary 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the 
auditors of such companies incorporated in India. 

The internal financial controls with reference to financial information insofar as it relates to an associate 
company, which is a company incorporated in India and included in these consolidated financial 
statements, have not been audited either by us or by other auditor. In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us by the Management, such unaudited associate company is not 
material to the Holding Company. 
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BS R & Co. LLP 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial 
statements of lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Continued) 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Place: Neida 

Date: 30 April 2024 

For B S R & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 101248W/W-100022 

Kanika Kohli 

Partner 

Membership No.: 511565 

!CAI UDIN:24511565BKFTCN4621 
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lndiaMART InterMESl-1 Limited 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

Notes 
As at As at 

3 1 March 2024 31 March 2023 -------------------Assets 
Non-current asset~ 
Property, plant and equipment 

Capital work in progress 
Right-of-use assets 

Goodwill 
Other intangible assets 

Investment in associates 
Financial assets 

(i) Investments 
(ii) Loans 

(iii) Other financial assets 
Deferred tax assets (net) 

Non-current tax assets (net) 

Other non-current assets 

Total Non-current assets 

Current assets 
Financial assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Trade receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iv) Bank balances other than (i ii) above 
(v) Loans 

(vi) Other financial assets 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Total Assets 

Equity and Liabilities 
Equity 
Share capital 
Otl1er equity 

Total Equi~• 

Liabilities 
Non•current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i) Lease liabilities 

(ii) Otl1er financial liabilities 
Contract liabilities 
Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Total Non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

(i) Lease liabilities 

(ii) Trade payables 

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 
Contract liabilities 

Other current liabilities 
Provisions 
Current tax liabilities (net) 

Total Current liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Material accounting policies 

TI1e accompanying notes arc an integral part oftl1e consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

5A 

5A 

5B 
6A 

6B 
7 

8 
8 
8 

26 
18 

9 

8 
10 

II 
II 
8 
8 

9 

12 
13 

15 (a) 
15 (b) 

17 

16 
26 

15 (a) 
14 

15 (b) 
17 

17 

16 
18 

155.01 
5.04 

326.85 
4,542.72 

335.23 
2,541.67 

2,694.81 

65.32 
42.04 

60.27 
15.83 

10,784.79 

22,221.76 
47.82 

848.04 
163.97 

108.31 
248.82 

62.52 
23,70 1.24 

34,486.03 

599.49 

16,761.65 
17,361.14 

292.45 

269.57 
5,189.79 

268.47 
429.47 

6,449.75 

114.22 

0.55 

343.07 
433.94 

9,210.02 
425.67 

97.38 
50.29 

10,675.14 

17,124.89 

34,486.03 

For and 011 behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For BS R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accoulllants 

ICAI Finn Registration No. 101248W/W-100022 

Kanika Kohli 
Partner 
Membership No.: 511565 
Place: Naida 

IndiaMART lnterMESl-1 Limit 

rwal 
( dCEO) 
DIN :00191800 

i~~~ 
Pratcek Chandra 
(C'hiefFinancial Officer) 

Place: Naida 
Date: 30 April 2024 

128.31 

1.77 
412.62 

4.542.72 
447.43 

2.751.48 

2.365.52 
0.84 

40.73 

21.75 

84.26 
15.21 

10,812.64 

22,718.33 

70.55 

581.06 

1.69 
56.48 

149.62 

55.93 
23,633.66 

34,446.30 

305.79 
20.279. 13 

20,584.92 

340.28 
355.68 

4,205.57 
I 96.40 

202.86 
5,300.79 

118.80 

1.07 

271. 11 

270.61 
7,419.06 

367.09 
77.02 

35.83 
8,560.59 

13,861.38 

34,446.30 

~~v~ 
Manoj Bhar ava 
(Company Secre ry) 



lndiaMART IntcrMESH Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3 I March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

Notes 

Income: 
Revenue from operations 
Other income 

Total income 

Expenses: 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 

Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Net profit before share of loss in associates, exceptional items and tax 
Share in net loss of associates 
Profit before exceptional items and tax 

Exceptional items 
lmpainnent of investment 
Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 
Total tax expense 

Net profit for the year 

Other comprehensive (loss)/income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans 
Income tax effect 
Other comprehensive Ooss)/income for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share: 
Basic earnings per equity share (INR) • face value of INR IO each 
Diluted earnings per equity share (INR) • face value of INR IO each 

Material accounting policies 

19 
20 

21 

22 
23 

24 

7 

26 
26 

25 

2 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Finn Registration No. 101248W/W-100022 

Kanika Kohli 
Partner 
Membership No.: 511565 

Place: Noida 

Date: 30 April 2024 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

11 ,967.75 
2,106.10 

14,073.85 

5,440.72 
89.1 3 

364.61 

3,213.45 
9,107.91 

4,965.94 
(403.94) 

4,562.00 

(I 8.23) 
4,543.77 

953.86 
250.38 

1,204.24 

3,339.53 

(8.83) 
2.02 

(6.81) 

3,332.72 

55.18 
55.04 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

9,853.99 
1,805.26 

I 1,659.25 

4,247.35 
81 .51 

310.75 
2,927.81 
7,567.42 

4,091.83 
(379.05) 

3,712.78 

3,712.78 

950.11 
(75.60) 
874.51 

2,838.27 

60.37 
(15.3 1) 
45.06 

2,883.33 

46.48 

46.32 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
IndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 

ra Agarwal 
(Managing Director and CEO) 

DIN:00191800 

t.i,,J)~ 
Prateek Chandra 
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Place: Noida 
Date: 30 April 2024 

ar Agrawal 
( director) 
DIN:00191760 

~~~~-
Manoj Bhar va 
(Company Secre ary) 



lndlaMART lntcrMESH Llmllrd 
ConsolidatNI St11cmcn1 or changes In equity for lhc )'CU ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts m fNR m1lhon. unless othcrwiu stated) 

(a) [quit) share capllal (Rtfrr Nole 12) 

Eoull, sharts or INR 10 nch iuul'd. sutmrfht-d and fulh 1>ald up 
Eqult) sh:iirl' tapll:111 a l lhl' beginning oftht )'Ur 
Boom iHueduring the yea, (Rcf'tr Note 12( I)) 
Equ11y f.h.a:rcs i5,_u1o:I IO lncbaman Empk')U B1.ndil Tn61 <bmg lhc )'Cal (fifer noce I 2(d)) 

Eawtvshar~ewn2U1Jht.doo bm·backd&nn21he,UJ (Refer NOie 12(1)) 
£quit) Jhart capilal al 1hr tod ortbe )tar 
&llUIY ~harCt'l hdd t,y lodlt mNI Empkwre 8mdit Tm~t &~ al l't'M av! (rcfcr 1101c l 2(d}) 
Equll) sbarr capital at 1hr tnd or lht )'tar nrt or diminallon on account or sb:urd 

bt ld b) lodiam2rt [mplO)·te Bentfil Trust 

(b) Othe:r equll)· (Rtfcr Note 13) 

Partlculan 

Balanrus at I April 2022 
Profit for 1bc year 
Othtr annormfflS1ve Ul(l()me for tht- u, 

Total CODIDrth cnsh l' lncomt 
Buy.back of equity shares• 
E,;pcnscs for buy-bad: or tqmly shares 
Amounl 1ransferml to capital rcdemptJOn rcsnve upon buybad. 
Emplo~ share based payment expense (Ref tr Nocc 23) 
ls.sue of cquny shares on o:crcist"orsharc based awards dunna thcyca, 
Fmal dividend naid IINR 2/- ocr share for financial \'CM ended 31 March 2022} 
B1lancc as at 31 March 2023 

Balance as at 1 April 2023 
Prof11 ror the )Qr 

DI.her comnrdlaiswe loss for the.__, 
Total comorehensh't Income 
Amount ulihsed for bonus issue 
Buy-back of equ1ty shares (Refer Note l 2(2n-
Expenses for buy-back of equity shares (Refer Noce 12(2)) 
Amount transfemd to cap11al n:dempt100 reserve upon buyback 
Employtt shart' bastd payment expense- (Refer Nott 21) 
lssur of equity shares on cxcrcis" of sharr bastd awards durin& the year (mcludmg 
bonus cffca) 
Final d1vidmd paid (INR 201· pa share for financial yarcndtd 31 March 2023\ 
Balanct H 1131 Marth 2024 

Including tax on bu}bad:. of INR 1,161.89 {31 March 2023. 232.59) 

JI March 2024 
30615 
306 IS 

1125-0) 

599.80 
(0 )I) 

599.49 

Sttt1rhlts premium 

15,383.23 

139.27 

15,522.50 

15,522.50 

(304.19) 
(6.149.39 

{36.95 
{4.05) 

137.14 

9,165.06 

JI March 2023 
305 65 

2 IO 
(I 60) 

306. I~ 
(0)6) 

305.79 

Altributabk to the cnullY holdl'n or narrot 
Rrscn ·H and sunilus 

Ctn era I rtscn t Emplo!tt share based Capital Redtmptlon Rnaloed tarnlngs 
pa} mcnt rt'Scn·c Rcscn·t 

8.45 130.16 2,913.16 
2,838.27 

45."' 
l,883.33 

{1.2)0.99) 
{12.78) 

1.6( {1.60) 
265.66 

(139.27) 
161.091 

8.45 256.SS 1.60 4,490.03 

8.45 256.55 1.60 ◄,490.0J 

3,339.53 
16.81) 

3,332.72 
{1.60) 

{8.45) 12.5C 
253.60 

{137.23) 

1611.58) 
372.92 12.50 7,211.17 

(Loss)/ Gain orlNR (6.SI) and JNR 45.06 on remeasurement ordcfintd bendi1 plans (ntt of tax) is recognised as I pan orrttamcd earnings rortM' year end«! 3 I March 2024 and 31 Muth 2023 respccuvcly, 

The accompanying noccs arc an int('Jr.11 part or11ie consolidated finaocial s111cmcnts 

As p<'f our rq,on or tvcn d111c anachtd 

For 8 SR & Co. LLP 
C.:hor1,rrd Accoumanu 
ICAI Finn Rq1strauon No. I01248W/\V-100022 

~~~ 
Kanlka Kohli 
Pannn-
Membenh1p No .. 511565 
Place: Noida 

of 

ban ra Ag• -11 
(Man.a&mg D1 or CEO) 
DIN:00191800 

Total other equity 

18,43S.00 
2,838.27 

45.06 
2,883.33 

{l,2)0.99) 
{12.78) 

265.66 

(61.09 
20 219.13 

20,219.13 
3,339.53 

(6.81) 
J,JJ2 .7l 
{)05.79) 

(6,149.39) 
(36.95) 

253.60 
{0.09) 

1611.581 
16 761.6S 

Date: 30 April 2024 &~:.::~~ 6 ~c~ 
(Company S..,;~l \__) (Chief Financial Officn) 

Platt: Nolda 
Date: 30 Apnl 2024 



lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million. unless otherwise stated) 

Notes 

Cash flow from 011erating activities 
Profit before tax for the year 
Adjust111e11ts for: 

Depreciation. amortisation and impairment expense 23 

Interest. dividend and otl1er income 20 
Gain on de-recognition of Right-of-use assets 20 
Liabilities and provisions no longer required written back 20 

Fair value gain/(loss) (net) on measurement interest and income from sale of mutual funds. 20 
exchange traded funds. bonds. debentures. units of investment trust and alternative investment 
funds 

Fair value gain on measurement and sale of Investment in otl1er entities 20 

Net gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment 20 
Finance costs 22 

Allowances for doubtful debts 
Share-based payment expense 21 
Gain on sale of invesn11ent in Associates 20 

Share of net loss of associates 
lmpaim1ent of investment 7 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

Net changes in: 

Trade receivables 
Other financial assets 
Otl1er assets 
Other financial liabilities 
Trade payables 

Contract liabilities 
Provisions and other liabilities 
Cash generated from operations 

Income tax paid (net) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities 
Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment 

Purchase of property. plant and equipment. other intangible assets and capital advances 
Purchase of current investments 
Inter-corporate deposits placed with financials institutions 
Redemption of inter-corporate deposits placed with financials institutions and body corporates 
Proceeds from sale of current investments 

Interest. dividend and income from investment units 
Payment for acqusition (net of cash acquired) 
lnvesbnent in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three months) 
Redemption of bank deposits 
lnvesbnent in associates and other entities 
Proceeds from sale of investment in associates and other entities 

Net cash flow from/(uscd in) investing activities 

Cash flow from financing activities 
Repayment of lease liabilities (including interest) 
Dividend paid 

Expenses for buy-back of equity shares 
Buy-back of equity shares including tax on buyback 
Proceeds from issue of equity shares on exercise of share based awards 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

C ash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Material accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For BS R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accormtauts 
!CAI Finn Registration No. 101248\V/W-100022 

~~~ 
Kanika Kohli 
Partner 
Membership No : 5 I 1565 
Place: Noida 

Date: 30 April 2024 

II 

II 
II 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

4.543.77 3.712.78 

364.61 310.75 
(29.27) (32.22) 
(4.82) (4.71) 
(1.55) (1.55) 

(1.778.75) (908.20) 

(286.64) (837.99) 
(2.00) (2.86) 
89. 13 81.51 

0.18 
253.60 265.66 

(0.28) 
403.94 379.05 

18.23 
3,570.25 2,962.12 

22.73 27.20 
(98.19) (3.47) 
(7.21) (2 77) 

30.69 33.13 
71.44 72.89 

2.775.18 2.332. 76 
142.18 90.90 

6,507.07 5,512.76 
(915.41) (754.48) 

5,591.66 4,758.28 

2.75 11.55 
(146.77) (172.03) 

(22,190.70) (21,825.59) 
(272.81) (52.1 2) 
156.60 448.95 

24.05 I.I 9 22.960.84 

441.21 535.68 
(5,068.37) 

(167.54) (1.86) 
5.26 371.29 

(255.01) (724.13) 
275.69 

1,624.1 8 (3,240.10) 

(138.86) (128.11 ) 
(611.48) (60.98) 

(36.95) (12.78) 
(6,161.89) (1,232.59) 

0.32 1.87 

(6,948.86) (1 ,432.59) 

266.98 85.59 
581.06 495.47 
848.04 581.06 

For and 011 behalf of the Board of Directors of 
lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 

(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) 

Place: Noida 
Date: 30 April 2024 



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 

1. Corporate Information 

IndiaMART lntermesh Limited ("the Company" or "the Parent Company") is a public company domiciled in India 
and was incorporated on 13 September 1999 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The 
equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India. The Company 
and its consolidated subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as "the Group") provides an online B2B 
marketplace for business products and services. It provides a platform to discover products and services and 

coru1ect with the suppliers of such products and services. The registered office of the Company is located at 1st 

Floor, 29-Daryagang, Netaji Subash Marg New Delhi-110002, India. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board 
of Directors on 30 April 2024. 

2. Material accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as explained in the 
accounting policies below, except for the following: 

• certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value where Ind AS requires a different accounting 
treatment (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments); 

• share-based payments 
• net defined benefit (asset)/liability - Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit 

obligations. 

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates 
and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group' s 
accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, or areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in Note 3. 

2.2 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and 
associates as at 31 March 2024. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 

• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 
the investee) 

• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 
• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption 
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
• The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 
• The size of the group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other 

voting rights holders 



lndiaMART Intermesh Limited 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Group subsidiaries and associates are as follows: 

s. Name of Subsidiaries and Associates and date of 
Proportion of 

No. shareholding 
ownership interest 
as at 31 March, 2024 

(A) Subsidiaries: 

1 Tradezeal Online Private Limited (from 31 May 100.00% 
2005) (formerly Known as Tradezeal International 
Private Limited) 

2 Hello Trade Online Private Limited (from 03 July 100.00% 
2008) 

3 Busy lnfotech Private Limited (from 06 April 2022) 100.00% 

4 Livekeeping technologies Private Limited (Formerly 51.01% 
known as Finlite Technologies Private Limited) 
(from 23 May 2022) 

5 Pay With IndiaMART Private Limited (from 07 100.00% 
February 2017) 

6 Tolexo Online Private Limited (from 28 May 2014) 100.00% 

(B) Associates: 

7 Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited (from 03 27.45% 
September 2019) (on Fully diluted 

basis) 

8 Truckhall Private Limited (from 05 June 2021) 31.20% 
(on Fully diluted 

basis) 
9 Shipway Technologies Private Limited (from 29 26.00% 

April 2021) (on Fully diluted 
basis) 

10 Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited (from 13 26.23% 
August 2021) (on Fully diluted 

basis) 
11 Edgewise Technologies Private Limited (from 04 26.01% 

February 2022) (on Fully diluted 
basis) 

12 1B Monotaro Private Limited (from 03 March 2022) 26.70% 
(on Fully diluted 

basis) 
14 Mobisy Technologies Private Limited (from 03 25.08% 

November 2022) 

15 Adansa Solutions Private Limited (from 06 April 26.01% 
2022) 

Proportion of 
ownership interest as 
at 31 March 2023 

100.00% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

51.01% 

100.00% 

100.00% 

27.45% 
(on Fully diluted 

basis) 

25.02% 
(on Fully diluted 

basis)-
26.00% 

(on Fully diluted 
basis)-
26.23% 

(on Fully diluted 
basis)-
26.01% 

(on Fully diluted 
basis)-
26.00% 

( on Fully diluted 
basis) 

25.08% 

26.0 1% 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 

changes to one or mor .__,_, lements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when 
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obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/quarter are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control 
the subsidiary. 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate 
adjustments are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial 
statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies. 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date 
as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2024 since the Group's subsidiaries and associate have 
the same reporting period end. 

Consolidation procedure: 

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of 
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the 
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date. 

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion 
of equity of each subsidiary. 

c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are 
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate 
an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes 
applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup 
transactions. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of 
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, if any, even if this results in the non-controlling 
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of 
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group 
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the 
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, with.out a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

• Derecognises the assets (including goodwill, if any) and liabilities of the subsidiary 
• Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests 

• Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity 
• Recognises the fair value of the consideration received 
• Recognises the fair value of any investment retained 
• Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss 
• Reclassifies the parent's sh.are of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained 

earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed ohhe related assets or 
liabilities 

2.3 Material accounting policies 

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of th.is note, have been consistently applied, by all 
the group entities, to all the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements except where a newly 
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change 
in the accounting policy. 

,..-----

:9\ 
+ 
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The group adopted Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to Ind AS I) from I April 2023 .Although the 
amendments did not result in any changes in the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting 
policy information disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. 

The amendments require the disclosure of 'material' rather than 'significant' accounting policies. The amendments 
also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to 
provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in 
the financial statements. 

a) Statement of Compliance 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 have been prepared in accordance with 
the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 
("the Act") (as amended from time to time). 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest INR million as 
per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. 

b) Current versus non-current classification 

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash­
equivalents, the group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for determining current and non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. 

c) Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as Investment in equity/preference/debt instrument of other 

entities, Investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment 
funds and investment trust at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the degree to which the inputs to the 
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its 
entirety: 

(i) -C d (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liab· • • ~ =::::,,..... 

urugra 

+ 
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(ii) Level 2 - inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

(iii) Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting Group's assumptions about pricing 
by market participants 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on fair value on a recurring 
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the 
end of each reporting period. 

The Group's management determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such as 
investment in optionally convertible cumulative redeemable preference instruments (OCRPS), investment in 
compulsory convertible debentures (CCD), investment in equity/preference/debt instruments of other entities, 
investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, government securities, units of investment 
trust and units of alternative investment funds measured at fair value. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted investments in 
equity/preference/ debt instruments of other entities. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by 
the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the Group's external valuers, which 
valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. 

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management 
verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation 
to contracts and other relevant documents. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the;: nature;:, c;harac;te;:rislic;s am! risks of the;: asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as e;:xplained 
above. This note summarises the accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given 
in the relevant notes. 

• Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (Note 3) 
• Disclosures for valuation methods and quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 

29) 

d) Revenue from contracts with customers and other income 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group is primarily engaged in providing web related services and accounting software services. Revenue 
from contracts with customers is recognised when control of tl1e services is transferred to the customer at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and 
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. 

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from 
contracts with customers are provided in Note 3. 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised. 

Rendering of services 

Revenue from web services is recognised based on output method i.e. pro-rata over the period of the contract as 
and when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised services to its customers. 
Revenues from lead based services is recognised based on output method i.e. as and when leads are consumed by 
the customer or on the expiry of contract whichever is earlier. Activation revenue is amortised over the estimated 
customer relationship period. 

°'B< 
co~r; 
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Revenue from term license software for accounting software services is recognized at a point in time when control 
is transferred to the end user. Control is transferred when the end user activates the license procured from the 
Company. In case of renewals of proprietary term licenses with existing customers, revenue from term license is 
recognized at a point in time when the renewal is activated by the end user. Revenue from support and subscription 
(S&S) is recognized over the contract term on a straight-line basis as the Company is providing a service of 
standing ready to provide support, when-and-if needed, and is providing unspecified software upgrades on a when­
and-if available basis over the contract term. In case softwares are bundled with support and subscription for term 
based license, such support and subscription contracts are generally priced as a percentage of the net fees paid by 
the customer to purchase the license and are generally recognized as revenues rateably over the contractual period 
that the support services are provided. 

Revenue from sale of services is based on the fixed price agreed with the customers, net of discounts. 

Advertising revenue is derived from displaying web based banner ads and sale of online advertisements. Revenue 
from banner advertisement is recognised pro rata over the period of display of advertisement as per contract. 
Revenue from sale of online advertisements is recognised based on output method and the Group applies the 
practical expedient to recognize advertising revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice. 

Contract balances 

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional ( i.e., only the passage 
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in 
section o) Financial instruments. 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received 
consideration ( or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 
the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised. The Group recognises contract 
liability for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as 
deferred revenue and advances from customers in the balance sheet. The unaccrued amounts are not recognised 
as revenue till all related performance obligations are fulfilled. The Group generally receives transaction price in 
advance for contracts with customers that run up for more than one year. The transaction price received in advance 
does not have any significant financing component as the difference between the promised consideration and the 
cash selling price of the service arises for reasons other than the provision of finance. 

Other income 

Interest income 

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate 
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life 
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset 
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. 
Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividends 

Dividend is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 
shareholders approve the dividend. 

e) Business combinations, goodwill and Intangibles 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is the aggregate 
of the consi • tr sferred which is measured at fair value at the acquisition date and the amount 
controlling -~ cquiree. For each business combination, the Group measures the n 

.< 
Gurugram ~ 

+ 



lndiaMART Intermesh Limited 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 

interest in the acquiree at fair value. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred. Any contingent 
consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent 
consideration classified as financial liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the 
amount recognized for non-controlling interest, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate 
consideration transferred, the excess is recognized as capital reserve after reassessing the fair values of the net 
assets. 

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Goodwill is tested annually on 31 March, for impairment, or sooner whenever there is an indication that goodwill 
may be impaired, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Group's 
cash generating units (CGU) expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the business combination. A 
CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the 
cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. 

Impairment occurs when the carrying amount of a CGU including the goodwill, exceeds the estimated recoverable 
amount of the CGU. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value­
in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU. Total 
impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the CGU and 
then to the other assets of the CGU, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An 
impairment loss on goodwill recognized in the statement of profit and loss is not reversed in the subsequent period. 

t) Property, plant and equipment 

Capital work in progress and property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment 
and borrowing costs for long-tem1 construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts 
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately 
based on their specific useful lives. 

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under development as at the balance sheet 
date. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 
classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under 
capital work- in- progress. 

The Group has adopted component accounting as required under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Group identifies the components separately, if it has useful life different from the respective property, plant and 
equipment. 

Based on the analysis, Group believes that it does not have any asset having useful life of its major components 
different from the property, plant and equipment, hence Group believes that there is no material impact on the 
financial statement of the Group due to component accounting. 

Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives 
prescribed under Schedule II to Companies Act, 2013. The Group has used the following rates to provide 
depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment: 

ro ?J 
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Asset Annual rates 
Com outers 63.16% 
Furniture and fittings 26.89% 
Office equipment 45.07% 
Vehicles 31.23% 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
de-recognition of the asset ( calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 
classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under 
capital work- in- progress. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

g) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). 
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related 
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either 
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is 
made on a prospective basis 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised. 

Unique telephone numbers are amortised on a written down value basis at 40% annually. 

Intangibles being Software acquired by the Group are amortised as follows: 
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Entity Method Rate (o.a.) 
Indiamart Intermesh Limited Straight line method 20% 
(Identified intangibles acquired 
under business combination) 
lndiamart Intermesh Limited Written down value 40% 
( other intangibles) 
Tolexo Online Private Limited Written down value 40% 
Busy Infotech Private Limited Straight Line 33.33% 
Livekeeping Technologies Private Written down value 63.16% 
Limited 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as 
capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date, are disclosed under capital work­
in-progress. 

h) Leases 

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Group assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether: (1) the contact 
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 
asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. At the date of 
commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a corresponding lease liability 
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-tem1 
leases) and low value leases. for these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments 
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Leases for which the group is a lessor 
is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the 
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset 
arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the relevant lease. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the 
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that 
they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount 
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are 
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may 
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount ( i.e. the higher of the fair value 
less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate 
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease liability is initially measured 
at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the 
country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related 
right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination 
option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows. 

Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased 
prope the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were a 
betwee 1u:ce....;~Ra and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of inter 
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remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges were recognised in fmance costs in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

A ROU asset was depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there was no reasonable certainty that 
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset was depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

i) Investment in associates 

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over 
those policies. 

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated fmancial statements using 
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or, a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, 
in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS I 05. 

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at 
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
of the associate. Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When the 
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long­
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues 
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has 
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee 
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment 
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as 
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. 

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there is any objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net 
investment in an associate and that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net 
investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such objective evidence of impairment, then it is necessary 
to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire 
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36 
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value 
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount 
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent 
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases. 

j) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be in1paired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is detem1ined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups 
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by 
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
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calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and 
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered 
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or 
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate 
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which 
the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided 
on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or 
CGU' s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment Joss is reversed only if there has been a change 
in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. 
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed 
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised 
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried 
at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

k) Taxes 

Current Income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

• When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of 
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences 
will not reverse in the foreseeable future 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets 
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the 
fores , d taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can 
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 

Sales/ value added taxes/ Service tax/ Goods and service tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on 
incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/ GST paid, except: 

• When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, 
in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the 
expense item, as applicable 

• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the balance sheet. 

I) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or 
all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as 
a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a 
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable tl1at an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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m) Retirement and other employee benefits 

Short-term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented under other current financial liabilities in the balance 
sheet. 

Post-employment obligations 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, 
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the 
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable 
to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit 
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution 
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is 
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment 
or a cash refund. 

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees i.e. gratuity. The cost of providing benefits 
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with 
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

• The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 
• The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group 
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and 
loss: 

• Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and 
non-routine settlements; and 

• Net interest expense or income 

Other long-tenn employee benefit obligations 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects 
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee 
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial 
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting period-end. Actuarial gain/loss are immediately 
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current 
liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months 

after ~gp~~ date. 
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n) Share-based payments 

Employees of the Group also receive remuneration in the form of stock options (ESOP) and stock appreciation 
rights (SAR) as a share based payment transactions under the Group's Employee stock option plan and Employee 
stock benefit scheme. Both of these are equity settled share based payment transactions. 

The cost of equity settled transactions is determined based on fair value at the date when the grant is made using 
an appropriate valuation model. 

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves (SBP) in equity, 
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. 
The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transaction at each reporting date until the vesting date 
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity 
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the 
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in 
employee benefits expense. 

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair 
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of 
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the 
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, 
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and 
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions. 

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service 
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated 
as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other 
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. 

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the 
terms not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any 
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to 
the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the 
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted 
earnings per share. 

o) Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value except trade receivables plus, in the case of financial assets 
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date 
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing 
component are recognised at transaction price in accordance with IND AS 115. 

Subseguent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
~-Gt,-:"-
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• Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
• Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, 
and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income 
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally 
applies to loans to employees, trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 29. 

Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 
financial assets, and 

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at 
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group 
recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and 
loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the 
equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income 
using the EIR method. 

Debt instrument and equity instruments at FVTPL 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI 
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or 
recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). 

Debt instruments and equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of sin1ilar financial assets) is 
prinrnrily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when: 

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
b) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 

the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; 
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group 
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-thro 
arra~ ~ t; valuates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. Wh ~1 
nei.lihe<?tr~ e or retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred con • th ,07 -
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asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. 
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of 
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maxinmm amount of consideration that the Group could be 
required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank 
balance 

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 

The Group follows ' simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or 
contract revenue receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether 
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising 
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that 
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 
When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

• All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and sin1ilar 
options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life 
of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining 
contractual term of the financial instrument 

• Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms 

ECL impairment loss allowance ( or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in 
the statement of profit and loss (P &L). This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the P &L. The 
balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: 
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance 
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group 
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

• Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance 
<?--; & ®q , i.e. as a liability. 
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• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, 
impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as 
'accumulated impairment amount' in OCI. 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis 
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 
significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 
appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, security deposits and other payables. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such 
at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as 
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ 
losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and 
loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. 

De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different tem1s, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
able legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 
sand settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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p) Foreign currency transactions 

The Group's financial statements are presented in INR which is also the Group' s functional currency. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate 
if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 
rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

q) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to 
the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting 
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as 
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

r) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

s) Segment reporting 

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is 
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources 
and assessing performance. 

Pursuant to acquisition of Busy Infotech Private Limited and Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Finlite Technologies Private Limited) during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had identified 
two business segments namely "Web and related Services" and "Accounting Software Services" as reportable 
segments based on the nature of the products, the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal 
financial reporting systems. 

Web and related services pertains to online B2B marketplace for business products and services. It provides a 
platform to discover products and services and connect with the suppliers of such products and services. 
Accounting software services include business of development, system analysis, designing and marketing of 
integrated business accounting software to help and manage businesses with increased efficiency. 

The accounting~~j~e~ u~ed_ i~ the preparation of the financial ~tatements are _co~sistently appli~d to re~?rd 
revenue and ~~iili1@c5. . md1v1dual segments and are as set out 111 Note 2 on s1gmficant accountmg ;iff~-stcr,r, 
The accounpi.yJ) o ic1e • ,1ation to segment accounting are as under: £2~' '~~ 
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(a) Segment revenue and expenses 

Segment revenue is directly attributable to the segment and segment expenses have been allocated to various 
segments on the basis of specific identification. However, segment revenue does not include other income. 

(b) Segment assets and liabilities 

Assets and liabilities directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. 

t) Share Capital 

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options 
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

u) Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 
discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting 
period. 

v) Adoption of new accounting principles 

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (amendments to Ind AS 
12 - Income Taxes) 

The amendments clarify that lease transactions give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences and financial 
statements should reflect the future tax impacts of these transactions through recognizing deferred tax. The group 
has adopted this amendment effective 1 April 2023. The group previously accounted for deferred tax on leases on 
a net basis. Following the amendments, the group has recognized a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its 
lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. The adoption did not have any 
impact on the current and comparative periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. 

3. Significant accounting estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based 
on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or 
liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year, are described below. The Group has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters 
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 
about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond 
the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

a) Taxes 

Deferred a& ognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxab ·,rr..-{i:F:::::::::,.._ 
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the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable 
entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised 
before they expire. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets 
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies. 

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on the deductible temporary differences since the management is of 
the view that it is probable the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income 
based on the approved business plans and budgets. 

b) Share based payment 

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black- Scholes­
Merton option pricing model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share­
based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent 
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs 
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option and SAR units, volatility and dividend yield 
and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based 
payment transactions are disclosed in Note 28. 

c) Impairment of Non- financial assets 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at ann's length, for similar assets 
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based 
on a DCF model or other fair value valuation models. In DCF model, the cash flows are derived from the budget 
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or 
significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable;: 
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and 
the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

d) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefit) 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and 
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans 
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with 
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at 
intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected 
future inflation rates, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the 
employment market. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 27. 

e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When th~i&vC of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot 
based f{h • e -~fe in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques i 

' G n)r-
G 9 ~ 



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where 
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements 
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about 
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 29 and 31 for further 
disclosures. 

f) Useful life of assets considered for depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful 
life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are 
determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each financial year end. 

g) Leases 

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification 
of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term 
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered 
by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by 
an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether 
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a 
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise 
the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease term 
if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease 

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for 
a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. 

4. Recently issued accounting pronouncements 

As on 31 March 2024, there are no new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the 
group which has~ ~n-n tified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

~~< 
~~ 
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India MART lnterMESH Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amowlts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

SA Property, plant a nd equipment 

Computers Office equipments Furniture and Motor vehicles Total Property, Capital work in 
fixtures plant and progress 

equipment 

Gross carrying amount 
As at OJ April 2022 115.58 48.68 4.03 3.78 172.07 1.77 
Acquistions through business combinations (refer 1.73 1.29 1.61 4.42 9.05 

note 34) 
Additions for the year 184.22 3.79 0.59 7.18 195.78 
Disposals for the year (10.01) (3.82) (2.11) (8.1 I) (24.05) 
As at 3 1 March 2023 291.52 49.94 4.12 7.27 352.85 1.77 
Additions for the year 136.31 4.93 2.26 143.50 5.04 
Disposals for the year (32.12) (0.6 1) (0.Q9) (32.82) 
As at 31 March 2024 395.71 54.26 6.29 7.27 463.53 6.81 

Accumulated depreciation 
As al O I April 2022 92.51 42.73 3.26 2.95 141.45 
Charge for the year 92.60 3.39 0.44 2.01 98.44 
Disposals during the year (9.08) (2.66) (0.65) (2.96) (15.35) 
As at 31 March 2023 176.03 43.46 3.05 2.00 224.54 
Charge for the year• 110.12 4.02 0.66 1.64 11 6.44 1.77 
Disposals during the year (31.78) (0.60) (0.08) (32.46) 
As at 31 March 2024 254.37 46.88 3.63 3.64 308.52 1.77 

Net Carrying value 

As at 01 April 2022 23.07 5.95 0.77 0.83 30.62 1.77 
As at 31 March 2023 115.49 6.48 1.07 5.27 128.31 1.77 
As at 31 March 2024 141.34 7.38 2.66 3.63 155.01 5.04 



lndiaMART JnterMESH Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise slated) 

SB Right-of-use asset 
Ltasebold land 

Gross carrying amount 
As at 01 April 2022 
Acquistions through business combinations (refer note 34) 
Measurement period adjustments (refer note 34) 
Additions for the year 
Disposals for the year (refer note 2 below) 
As al 31 March 2023 
Additions for the year 
Disposals for the year 
As at 31 March 2024 

Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment 

As at O I Apr il 2022 
Charge for the year 
Disposals for the year (refer note 2 below) 
As at 31 March 2023 
Charge for the year (refer Note I below) 
Disposals for the year 
As at 3 1 March 2024 

Net Carrying value 

As at O I April 2022 
As at 3 I March 2023 
As at 31 March 2024 

37.12 

37.12 

37.12 

2.76 
0.46 

3.22 
33.90 

37.12 

34.36 
33.90 

Buildings Total 

834.60 871.72 
2.79 2.79 

(0.07) (0.07) 
30.05 30.05 

(79.41) (79.41 l 
787.96 825.08 
97.27 97.27 

(61.04) (61.04) 
824.19 861.3 I 

340.53 343.29 
100.22 100.68 

(31.5 I) (31.5 I) 
409.24 4 12.46 
102.46 136.36 
(14.36) (14.36) 
497.34 534.46 

494.07 528.43 
378.72 412.62 

326.85 326.85 

I. The Company has received a letter issued by the authorities during the year which includes reference of order cancelling the land lease deed as per the terms of the lease 
arrangement. In the said order, it was also mentioned that to restore the cancelled lease, the concerned persons are required to file an appeal under section 41 (3) of the UP 
Urban Planning and Development Act, 1973 within a stipulated time period. The Company has filed an appeal to restore the cancelled allotment of land within the prescribed 
timeline and the said appeal is pending before the appropriate authority. 
Pursuant to limited visibility on potential outcome of the appeal, the Right to Use asset recognised in respect of such leasehold land and Capital work in progress has been fully 
provided during the current year. 

2. Disposal includes adjustment on account oflease modifications 

The foUowing table prl'Sents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash flmn for lease liabilities as at year end: 

Within one year 
Within one - two years 
Within two - three years 
Within three - five years 
Above five years 
Total lease payments 

The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows: 

Opening balance 
Additions 
Addition due to business combination 
Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss as 
interest expense 
Payment oflease liabilities 
Dereco1;nition 
Adjustment for lease modifications 
Liabilities no longer required written back 
Balance as at year end (Refer Note 15) 

As at 31 March 2024 

133.23 
127.96 
107.85 
112.26 

2.31 
483.61 

As at 31 March 2024 

459.08 
94.06 

42.70 
(I 38.86) 

(50.31) 

406.67 

As at 3 1 March 2023 

129.34 
121.57 
106.29 
210.48 

6.62 
574.30 

As at 3 1 March 2023 

562.80 
28.56 
3.18 

47.10 
(128.1 1) 

(28.0 1) 
(25.11) 

(1.33) 
459.08 



IndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 
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6A Goodwill 

Acquistions through business combinations 

As at 3 I March 2024 

4 542.72 

The following table presents the changes in the canying value of goodwill based on identified CGUs: 

Busy Infotech Private Livekeeping Technologies 
Limited Private Limited 

Openinl! balance as at I April 2022 -
Acquisitions through business combination (refer note 34) 4,137.71 419.92 
Measurement period adjustments (refer note 34) (15.37' 0.46 
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 4,122.34 420.38 
Changes during the year - -
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 4,122.34 420.38 

As at 3 I March 2023 

4,542.72 

Total 

-
4,557.63 

(14.91) 
4,542.72 

-
4,542.72 

The Group tests goodwill for impaim1ent on March 31, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
goodwill is allocated to a CGU representing the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes, and which 
is not larger than the Group's operating segment. 

The recoverable amount of the CGU was based on its value in use and was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the 
continuing use of the CGU. These calculations use cash flow projections over a period of five to six years (31 March 2023: five 10 seven years) and then on 
perpetuity on the basis of certain assumptions which include revenue growth, earnings before interest and taxes, taxes, capital outflow and working capital 
requirement, based on next year financial budgets approved by the management, with extrapolation for the remaining period. Future cash flows are 
discounted with "Weighted Average Cost of Capital". The key assumptions arc as follows: 

For the year ended 31 March 2024: 

Particulars Busy Infotecb Private Limited Livckceping Technologies 
Private Limited 

Discount rate (pre tax) (%) 26.77% 21.39% 
Terminal value growth rate (%) 4.00% 4.00% 

For the year ended 31 March 2023: 

Particulars Busy Infotech Private Limited Livekecping Technologies 
Private Limited 

Discount rate (pre tax) (%) 25.97% 19.61% 
Tem1inal value growth rate(%) 4.00% 4.00% 

Average annual revenue growth rate is 29.95% (31 March 2023: 37.03%) for Busy lnfotech Private Limited and 180.76% (31 March 2023: 168.15%) for Livekeeping 
Technologies Private Limited for the above stated period(s). Further, the discount rate is based on the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of a comparable market 
participant, which is adjusted for specific risks. These estimates are likely 10 differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows. 

Based on the above, no impairment was identified as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 as the recoverable value of the CGUs exceeded the canying value. 

With regard to the assessment of value-in use for Busy lnfotech Private Limited and Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited, no reasonably possible change in any of the 
above key assumptions would cause the canying amount of the CGUs to exceed its recoverable amount. 
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6B Other Intangible assets 

Gross carrying amount 
As at 01 April 2022 
Acquistions through business combinations (refer note 34) 

As at 31 March 2023 
Additions 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2024 

Accumulated amortization 

As at 01 April 2022 
Amortisation for the year 

As at 31 March 2023 
Amortisation for the year 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2024 

Net Carrying value 

As at 01 April 2022 
As at 31 March 2023 
As at 31 March 2024 

/ ~ ,, C-\ 
<:.:y 

/40( GU~niY-o 

Software 
Unique telephone 

numbers 

--
--
15.07 4.70 

0.77 

15.84 4.70 

(0.5 I) 

15.33 4.70 

-
13.69 4.49 

0.78 0.09 --
14.47 4.58 

0.45 0.02 

(0.12) 

14.80 4.60 

1.38 0.21 

1.37 0.12 

0.53 0.10 

Technology Channel Network Total 

--
--

19.77 
191.08 365.62 557.47 --
191.08 365.62 577.24 

(0.51) 
191.08 365.62 576.73 = 

-
18.18 

37.64 73.1 2 111.63 --
37.64 73.12 129.81 

38.22 73.1 2 TilTI 
(0. 12) 

75.86 146.24 241.50 

= 
1.59 

153.44 292.50 447.43 

115.22 219.38 335.23 

;; 



lodlaMART lntul\f[SH Limittd 

Nott.\ 10Cou._,olida1«1 Financial Statemuh forlht yur codtd 31 March ?ON 
Amounts in INR 1mll1on. un10$5 Olhcm:is('S\al~Xll 

7 lonstmeol io uroclaltS• Unquoted• 

(Actoaoted o.ndtr cquily mtlbod ) 

Fully paid up- al COSI 

Jnvttlmeol~ lo Simply Vyapar App, Pri\·lle Llmiltd ( rcfrr note I btlov.) 
Compulsory con,·crt1blc prcfcraicc sh.m.$ of INR 100 each (31 ptaTiiwn of 
JNR 52.217.90 each) 

Bonus shat~ ro.-(fruJ on alxlve Compulsory connrtiblc preference shares 

Equl1yshares of lNR 10 each (at premium oflNR 52.307.90 well) 
Bonus shares ro:ei\'00 on abo ... c E.quily shares 

Compulsory C()Jl\'Cf1iblc prekrenre sh;:m.,s of [NR 100 each (al pn..-mium of INR 
2,9:>.261 C3Ch) 

Bonus shares rocci\'trl on atxive Compulsory corwa1iblc prcfcrmce shares 

Equity shares of tNR 10 each (at premiwn ofJNR 2.QJ.:?42 each) 
Bonus shar~ roccivo.l on above Equity ~hares 

Equity ,hares oflNR 10 each (31 prcmiun1 oflNR 2,90.J51 each) 
Bonus shares roceived on abo,..c Equily shares 
Less: Sharcofloss of associate 

Jn\·tsfmeolJ lo Mobi~y T echoologle.s Prlvlle Limited 
Compulsory ronwrtiblc preference sh.ares of INR I each (at premiwu of INR 776 
Qch) 

F..quit)' sh.1rci of J1','R I each (a1 prcmiwn (lf INR 776 each) 
(ompulsorycon,\.'rtib!c prcfcrcocc shares of lNR I each ( al pri,:miwn oflNR 836 
Olch) 

(ompulS(W)' cotWenibk pn:fof\,"llCC sharl!"S of INR I C3Ch (31 pn.·mium of 11'\'R 
1.2221· each 
l:.(juit)· shares ofJNR I each (at pn:miwn oflNR 837 each) 
Equity sh.lrcs oflNR I each (at pre:nuwn oflNR 1,2221-cach) 

Fair \"3lue gain rocogniso.l lhrOugh profil and loss till the date enmy has 
tlccome an associate 
Add: Share ofloss of associa1c 

hn-c-sfmtnl.s lo Tto Tlntl's Oolinl.' Prfratc Limirl.'d 
Equityshan.-s oflNR IO each (al premium ofn-.'R 40 t.3ch) 

Sale of equity shares oflNR 10 each (INR 64.7024) 
Gain oo sale of lm-estmenl during lhc )'Cal' 

Less: Share of loss of associate 

lonstmeul~ lo Truck.hall Prin ce Limited 

Compulsory con,·ooiblc prcfaoK:c shar<S of Jlo,,'R IO each (al pranium of INR 
7.467 each} 

Compulsorycon,·atibk pri..-faO'IC'e shares of INR 10 each (31 pranium of[NR 
14,:lM.! each) (Reier Notc4 below) 
Equ11y shares ofTNR 10 each (at prcmiwn of JNR 7.467 each) 
Less: Share of loss ofassociatc 

lo,·eslmeab lo Sbipway T« hook,jo,· Prh·a1e Llm.iled 

Compulsorycoiwatiblc pref""cncc shares oflNR 10 each (al pranium oflNR 
43.446 each) 
E.qu11ysharcs ofJNR 10 ruch (al praniwn of lNR 43.-44(, roch) 
Less: Share of loss of associale 

ID\'Ufmeol5 In Aglll05 E-Con1mtrct Prha1e Limited 

Compulsory COO\·crtihle prt.>fcrcnce shares of!NR JO each (at rranium ofl"NR 
60.311 each) 
Equi1ysharcs of lt-lR 10 each (31 prunium ofJNR 43.497 CJCh) 

Less: lmpairmmt allowance for inrcstmU11 in shares ( Rcfcr note 2 bclow) 
Less: Share ofloss ofassociatc 

lnns lmrols ln Edgewhl' T rchoologiu Prh·att Llmlltd 

Compu!sOf)' Convatiblc Preference Share!; of rNR 10 each (at prunium ol 
TNR 27.314 each) 
E:Quily Shares oflNR 10 each (al premium oflNR 27.31 4 each) 
Less: Share of loss ofassoci31e 

lo\'H tmeol~ io JB Monotaro Pri\'31C Limlled 

E.quitysh.arcs ofTNR 10 each (at pra1tiwn of lNR 1.274.1 S cich) 
lnw,':.S1mm1 in Equil}0 sharcs oflNR 10 each(,11 praniumoflNR 1,275 . .'.U -
cach)(Refcr note 3 below) 
Less: Share or loss of associate 

lnnslmtols In Adanu, SolulktM Prh•atc Llmlled 

Equity shares oflNR 1000 ~ch (at premiwn ofINR 10.28.411.76 e.ich) 
Compulsory Con\·cniblc Prefcrcnccshan:s of!NR 10 c.ich (at pra11iwn of lNR 
14,696 each) 
Less: Shareofloss of associate 

•Refer note 3) for lfil.n.s.tctions and ou1standm~ balance, pcrtaimng 10 rdatcrl panics 

No1es: 

No. ofu..n.iH 

5.954 

l.13.126 

10 
190 

1,809 

34.371 

44-1 
8.436 

m 
2.603 

1,28,593 

100 
1.19.474 

] ,05.ti07 

17.7SO 
17.963 

12.846 

5,248 

!.879 

4.0k8 

100 

2.69.S 

2.241 

4.7lU 

)00 

8,11.250 

1.06.876 

20 

7.950 

A.sat 
31 P.brrh 2024 

311.511 

0.52 

525.26 

90.2.S 

39.78 

99.9.'.! 

0.07 
100.00 

129.20 

14.86 
:?! .911 

%.05 

75.00 

14.05 

I i7.65 

4.35 

162.50 

97.50 

IJ() 72 

2.73 

1.041.77 

137.36 

20.60 

116.90 

Amoun1 

967.30 
(463.72) 

366.03 

97.87 
(57.34) 

185 10 
(54.94) 

18200 
(15.56) 

260.00 

(18.23) 
(31.39) 

133.45 
(32.J0) 

1.179.13 
(263.91) 

137.50 
(19.32) 

2.~1.67 

I. During thc)'Cdr mdcd 31 M3rdl 2024. the Group has rocch·o:t bonus shares from Simply V)"Jp,;lr Pri\'ate Uffiilo.1 in 1hcratioof I :19 (1.c. 19 Bonus shares for eo.·a; I existmg share) 

No. orunlts 

5.954 

10 

l.8U9 

137 

l.:?8.593 

) I)() 

1.19.474 

1.05.<in 

17.7SO 
17.963 

18,701 

(18.701) 

12.846 

1,879 

4,088 

) I)() 

1.69.S 

2.241 

4.784 

100 

8.11.250 

2U 

7.950 

AHi 

31 March 2023 

311.50 

0.52 

52526 

9024 

39.78 

99.9:? 

0 .07 
100.00 

129.20 

14,86 

21.98 

0.93 
(1.21) 
0.28 

96.05 

14.05 

177.65 

4.35 

161.5() 

97.50 

130.72 

2 73 

I.0·H .77 

20.60 

116.90 

An1ouoc 

967.30 
(312.68) 

366.03 

97.87 
(9.54) 

110.10 
(30.74) 

182.00 
(17.58) 

260.00 

(24.38) 

133.45 
(11.95) 

1,041.77 
(126.I~) 

137.50 
(11.49) 

2.751.48 

2. During thc)'\!ar mdcd 31 Mardi 2024, l111p,3innoo1 loss amow11i11g 10 INR 18.23 has boo1 rccordOO for •Agillos E.Conuncrce Prl\'ate Lilmtcd"bascxl on impaim1en1 tCSIUli pcrformoJ due to actual pcrfonmncc bring lo\\·er than projo."tcd pa-formann· The 
said impainnenl has hccn classifitxl as an cxcq>tional item in Lhe statum.,11 of profit and loss 

J During the year llldL\.131 March 2024. the Group has furti1CY invested INR 137.36 into the equuy shares of!B Monot.aro Private Limitul as a p.1r1 of right issuC'tcsultmg in iTKTeaseofits equityO\O.·ncrshipon fullycom·a1o.J and dilu1W basis to 26.70• e from 
26.00°t,. 

4 Dunn{! the )'Cllt (:ndo:I 3 I March 2024. 0.0001 • o Compulsory 001wcrtible dcbaitures in Trud.:hall Private Limi100 amounting to JNR 75 has been coo,·crtoJ into 5,2480.001 • • Compulsorily Corwenible Prefawec shares of the face \'a Jue of lNR 10 ~ch 
resulting in incrro'icofits e..iuilyownaship on fully convened and dilu100 b.lsis to JI .:?O•, from 25.02°. 



lndlaMART lnltrMESII Llmlltd 
NOCH 10 Con~olidalcd Fin2ndal Slaltn1tnl<1 for lbt' )'tar tndtd 3 1 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR mil hon. unless othcrwise statu.l) 

I) lnnsl.mrau 
Non-canc:nt" 
i) Im esunent in other mtil1cs 31 FVTPL 
ii) Jm·cstmrot in debt instrwnmts of associates at FVTPL 

Cu.rrtnl 
lnvcsuna1t in mutual funds and exchange traded funds al FVTPL 
lil\'CSUllCJll in bonds and dl'hentwes 31 FVTPL 
lnn::sments in lm·estmenl Trust• Quoctxl (measurOO 31 FVTPL) 
ln,'CSlmL-nl in Gt'•••ffllllli.~I SccwitiC'S• Qootcd (measur.:d al FV-ll'LJ 

•ttefcr nolc 33 for transactions and ouistanding b3lan<x!S l)l.'113.inintt lo related p.,nies 

a) Noa-currut la,·t.Sfmtnls 
(I) lovttlmtnl In others t nflliu 
Ur,quowl (1"ea..wud al FVTPLJ (Rrfrr nofr I lwlor.'} 

lnst:uil Procurtmtnl Stn•lcts Prh·alt Lbnlltd 
Equity shares hcld oflNR 10 each (at prauium oflNR 899 eocll) 

Equity shares sold durini! lhc }'(.IT 
0.00 I•~ Compulsorily COfl\'<niblc preference share of INR IO each 
Fair \·alue gain rt'OOg:n.iscd through profit and Joss till date 

Lcgbtify Sendtes Privalt' Limited 
CompulSOt)' con,-cnible preference SMl'es or INR 10 CJCb (at premium of INR 
S,J32.68caclll) 
Compu1s,:,r)' con,'CfliMe preference: shares or INR 10 e.xb (at pr,1t1ium (If INR 
-1,104.14cachl 
Compulsory oon,'Cflible prerercn« shares of INR JO C3Cb (at premium of L\IR 
58.120.00 each} 
f~uity~--soflNR IOc.ich(at prcmiumoftNR S.IJ2.6&each) 
Fair \'lllue gain r~ised through profit and Joss Lill date 

Mrnd SoluUoas Printt Limilt d 
EquityshaR-s of JNR 10 each (at premium of INR 87.21 eacb) 
Equity shares of 1NR 10 1.'.!Ch (at pn'lllium of INR I 1'7.46 each) (Refer Note S 
below) 
Sakor~uitysharcs 
CompulSOI')' oorwenible prer~CI~ shares of 1NR 10 carh J1,,,'R (at pn:miwn ol 
INR 149.32 each) 
Fair ,-aluc ga111 r~tisOO UtrOURh profit and los~ till tlate 

Zi.nl)'O Coruulrlng Prh'a rc: Limit('d 
CornpulSOt)' com'<!t1ible preference shares of INR 10 each (.:11 premium of INR 
RG,306.32/· each) 

1:qui1yshan!S(lflNM 10 eoch (:11 ~1ium oflNR 86.306..)2/. cxh) 

Fltth: T ecboologiu Prh-alt Limited 
Compulsory com'!nib!i;: preference shares of INR JO each (at pranium of lNR 
67.420 ·e.n:b) 
Equilysba.rcs of INK 10 each (at pn"TniumoflNR 57.3151· each) 
F.:1ir ,,aluc loss rccop1iscJ throul;.h profit and loss till d.1!c 

(II) ln,·tstment io dl'ht ln.,i;truments or anodales at F\'TPL 
Unquoted (measured at FVTPL) 

hn-u lmrnt lo Trutkhall Privatl' Lln1iltd 

lnnisunmt made in 0.0001 ~~ Compulsory con,·tniblc dcbonures of INR 1000 
each in Truckhall Pri\·ate LimiteJ: 

Opmi.11g 

Addition during the year (Rcftt Note 2 below) 
Con\'crsion dwing the year (Refer Notc4 below) 

Jn,·rstmrnl io Moblsy Ttthnologle1 Prival t Llmllt d 
ln\'eslm~I in Compulsory connnible dd>mtures of INR 1000 eich in Mobi.sy 
Technologies Pri\"ale LimitOO 
OpcninJ;( 
Addition during the )'l:.lr (Rcfo-- Noic3 bdow) 

Notu: 

No. of units 

10 

16,200 

1,146 

1.580 

1.290 

100 

24,?4,637 
60.000 

15.10,6>6 

uno 

100 

10,)23 

3.805 

75.000 
30,000 

(75,000) 

80.000 
80.000 

Asal 
31 March202-I 

2.50-Ul 
19000 
2 694.81 

13,857.17 
5,299.81 

3,064.78 
22121.76 

Au l Asai 
3 1 !\·larch 2024 31 March 2023 

l'io. ofunlts 

5.510 0.05 
(5,500) (0.05) 

13.50 16.200 ll.l-0 
803.15 81665 373.24 

S.89 1.146 S.89 

6.l-0 1,580 6.l-0 

'75.00 1,290 75.00 

0.51 100 0.51 
87.90 14.28 

:?40.56 33.36.489 324.34 
1.65 

(8.61.852) (83.18) 
24068 15,10.656 240.68 

96.12 58S.0I 96.11 

161.41 1,870 161 41 

8.63 
170.04 100 8.6J. 

696.08 10.323 696.08 

:?Ill.I:! 3.805 218.1.! 
(68.99) 

2,504JII 

75.00 
JO.DO 75.000 75.00 

(75.00) 3000 

8000 
8000 160.00 80,000 80.00 

190.00 

I. The Groop has in\"('Sto.l in o;iuity. con,·cr1ible prefcreo-.-e. and OOJl\'tttible Jdit instrummts of other cntitic. and associa1es. bast.U on the tcmtS of these instrummts they are mrnswo.l at fair ,·alue 1hrough pro Iii and k)ss 

2. During theyrnrc:ndcd 31 March 2024. thcGro\llp has further im·estcd INR 30 in Trud:hall PrhatcLimi1ed in CompulsoryConn:rtiblc Owmturcs. 

A.sat 
31 Mardi 2023 

2,210.52 
15500 

2365.52 

11,736.59 
10,497.55 

-184.19 

22 '718.33 

Amou.nl 

386,74 

16.2.18 

S77.36 

170.04 

914.20 

2.210.52 

75.00 

80.00 

1s~.oo 

J. During the year endtxl 31 Ma.rch 202-1, the Group has further inn:stcd INR 80 in CompulsoryCon\'crtible Debcruures (CCDJ ofMobisyTcdmologics Pri\'3ll' Limito.L Such CC D's shall be convertible into CompulsorilyConvcr1ible Prcfttak.'.C Shares within 
a stipulatOO poiod as per ttnns ofin\'csuncnt 

4 During the )'Clr oodo.l 31 Mardi 2024, 0.0001~• Compulsory convertible dcbctitw\!S in Truck.hall Pr1\'atc Limito.J amounting to INR 75 has beol oon,·010.I into 5.248 0.001 ~• Compulsorily Com·utib!c Prcfcn.nce shares o(thc face \'3luc oflNR 10 each 
resulting in incnnscoJit.s lX{UilyOwntnhip on fullycomuted and dilutc..1 basis 10 31.20~. from 25.02De. 

5 Duri.J1g U1c yci.r cndtxl 31 Maf("h 2024. tl1(' Group has fwtha im·estoJ INR 7.65 in M)nd Solutions Pri\-atc 1...iml\00 thcrchy incrmsing the ~uity O'\~ ncrship to 9.34' , on folly corwated and dilutOO basis. TIUs in\"CSlln"11 has continued to he ctassifio:l as 
Mlrivc:stmtttt at FVTPL .. as pcr Ind-AS 109. 



India MART lnlerl\lESH Umilc:d 
Not rs to Com:olidalrd Finan rial Statrmc:nts for thl' yl'ar rndrd 31 March 1024 
AlllOWllS Ill lNR million. wtlcs:s otherwise stated 

Ananclal assrts (Con1'd) 

b) Current lnvc:stmc:nts 

lrnv-st1nrnt in ,nutuul fundJ and ~.:cdrangr tradrd funds - Quotrd 
(nirllSurrd at Fi,TPL) 
Aditya Birla Sw1 LifcCnrporatc Bond Fwid • R1,.~ul.u Growth 
A<lil).i Birla Sw1 Life Corporate Bond FW1d 
Adi1y;i Birla Sun Ufc Ovani~u fund 

Ad11ya 81rla Sw1 Life Nifty SDI.Apr 2027 lndcx FW'KI 
Ad11ya Birla Sw1hfc CRJSlL AAA J1u1 202) Index Fwtd 

Axis Corporate Debt FwKI 
Axis Liquid Fund 

Bajaj Finsu-vc l.Jquid Fwxl• Diroo i:,-owth 
Bhara1 Bond ETF April-2023 
Bharat Bond ETF April-2025 
Bharat Bo1KI FOF April 202) 
Edelweiss NIFTY PSU Doixl Plus SOL Apr 2026 50:50 lndc,i: Fw1d 

E<lcl~·dss CRISIL IBX 50:50 Gilt Plus SDLApr 2037 Index Fwxl 
Edelweiss CRISIL IBX 50:50 Gilt Plus SOL April2023 

Edelweiss Arbilfal!l' Fund 
HDFC Shon Tenn DOOi FwKI 
HDFC lo~· Dura1ion FWMI 
HDFC Corporate Bond Fwd 
ICICI Prudcmi:tl Bmikin1: & PSU Debt Fund 
ICICI Prudanial Corporate Bond Fwld • Growth 
ICICI Prudmtia.l Savings Fww.1 

ICICI Pnidmtia.l Shon Tenn Fund 
ICICI Prudcutial Corporate Doud Fwtd 

ICICI Prudential Nifty SOL O<'C 2028 h1dcx Fw1tl 
JDFC Bankini;: & PSU Debt Fww:1- Direct· Growth 
lnn::sco looia Arbitraj,!c Fund 
Kotak Corporate Bond F,uKI 
Kotak Nifty SOL Apr 2027 Top 12 Equal Weigh1 Index FWld 

Kotak Equity Arhiuaxc Fw1d 
Kotak Nifty SOL Apr 2032 Top 12 Equal W<-ii;tht Index FWld 
Nippon India D),narnic Bo1KI Fwxl 

Nippon India Nivcsh Lakshya Fww;I 

SB! Nifty SO ETF 
SB! Mutual Fund ETF Senscx Oru1 EndOO 
SB! SavinJ?S FwKI • Dirc-ci Growth 
SBI Liquid Fmxl- DirOCl . Growth Plan 
Ad.il)-a Birla S1a1 Life Liquid Fwid 

SBI S&P BSE Smscx ETF 
SBI Nifty l..11dc11: Fww.l 
SBI Maj!mnu Cnns1.1111 ~falurily Fwid 

SBI Arbitra~c Opponw1itics Fuud 

Tata Arbitr.iJ.!t Fwid 
Invesco looia Artiitni~e Fw)d • DG 
UTf Nifty 50 £TF 
UTI LiQuid Ca~h Plan 
Total 

lnt~5lmt'nt in bonds and debrnrurrs• Q11oud (mrasu"d at FVTPL) 
BajaJ Fmancc Lid. Bond 
Canara Bank pcrpctual bond 

E.'<p0rt lmpon Bank or h1dia 8011d 

Axis Fui.ance Lid. Bond 

HDFC bank Pcrpaual Bo1KI 
HDFC 2023 Coupon Bond 

HDFC Bank BOIKI 
HOB Fm.a:ncial SCYVioo;: Lid Bo1id 

ICJCI Banlc Infra Born..l 

Kotak Mahindra lnvcsnncnt Lid Ztn:1 Coupon Bond 
Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd. Bond 
lndia lnfradcbt IJd Bond 
IRfC UdBond 
ICICI Home FmallC('Company Ud MLD 
UC Housing Finance Bond 
M:ihimlra & Mahindra Financial Sm'lce. Ud. Zatl Coupon Bond 

NABARD Bond 
Piramal Enterpri ses: MLD 
Punjab National Bank Perpaual Bond 

Powu Grid Corporation orlndia Limilo.1 Bond 
Powa- Fmance Corporation Ud • Bond 

REC Bond 

State Dank or Jnclia Perpe1ua1 Bond 
7.75o/. SBI Sep12027 
Shriram Transpon MLD 
Bank ofB.uoda Papaual Bood 

St.ate Bank orlndia Tia-II Bond 
SIDBI Bond 
Tat:i Clcantoch MLD 
Union B:ink oflndia Pa-pctual Boixl 

Toral 

Jn,-esmrnts in Jn,·rsrmrnt Trust· Quoted (mrusured at FVTPLJ 
Powcrgritl ln\'IT 

Tot:a.l 

/m-rstmenf in Go)-rrm,ie111 Securities• Quoted (n,ras11red ,ir FVTPL) 
7.18'/4 Govunrnt"1"1l or India 2033 
7 18% Govmunml of India 2037 
7.44~~ GovcrnmcmofKama1akaSGS 2034 

7.43% Govcrnmall ofTamilnadu SGS 2034 
7.45% (iovcnunml ofK.vnataka SGS 2037 

7 73¾ Gov(mll1(nl orMalwashlia SGS 2036 
7 42'/4Govcnunau of Kamat.aka SGS 2035 
7 72'!.Govcnum.111 ofMa.lwashtta Bond SGS 2035 

Total 

Total currrnl im-'tslmtnls 

Aggrc:gatt book \'aluc: or quoted ln,·rstmrnls/ 

Aggreg2te marktl valur of quoted lnvrstni,rr1Gurugra 

A~rtgalt r.arn'lnj!. ,•alut or unquottd in\'tslmtnlS m 
• I 

AUi 
31 March 20H 

No. ofunils 
12,48,976 

1,16.44,141 

4,40.73.459 

87.77.620 
16,790 

10,005 

8.20.419 

4,74.76.()47 

4,77.54.473 
1,97,73.100 

17.60,675 

1,54.29,585 
47.38,647 

6.64.641 

14,74,179 

2,06,88.321 
4.82.19.177 

5),94,026 
2.37.186 

4,97.90,091 

1.13.75.631 
9,46,02.577 

2.49,40.628 

2,00.56.798 
6,02.665 

15.342 
45.42,601 

13.33.372 

6.48.000 
5.02.335 

9 1.91.798 
97.11.582 
29.95.342 
5350,104 
13.50.000 

2.850 
30 

2,500 
20 

500 
250 
750 

2.S00 
100 

300 
150 

10 

100 
15 

10 

500 

15 

50,00.000 

1,25,00.000 
5,00,0CXI 

10.00.000 
15.00.000 
35.00.000 
25.00.000 
25.00,000 

As al 
JI March 2023 

Amounl No. ofunlu Amoun1 
128.95 5,30.849 50.75 

1.20220 1,21.76,476 1,164.12 
4 0 01 

49462 4,69.79.108 49113 
39,99,365 42.0J 

141.96 1.22,01,532 240.59 
45.(16 

10.54 

4.00.000 491 6) 

982 29 3. 79.992 423.JI 
55,34,867 67.64 

563.66 4,74,76,047 525.51 
548.0.S 4,77,54,473 500.0.S 
226.92 
3330 

1.04.887 2 81 
874 61 1,54,29,585 8I0.37 
141.61 47,38,647 1)0.88 

4,12.300 11.36 
17.91 6,64,641 16.60 

736.43 14.74,179 681.95 
3.61.528 18.27 

582.29 2.23.05.368 580.56 
542.09 4,82,19,177 502.61 

12,05,754 25.19 
169.22 

838.50 2,52.698 827.90 
552.91 5,47,08.297 567.20 
413.92 15.80,642 53.0] 

1,079.69 9.46.02.577 990.38 

891.35 2,49.40.628 822.49 
330.22 
140.73 14,50,{K)() 26041 

12.19 
65.18 45,42,601 60.54 

7.127 25. 11 
76.76 1.65.315 60.02 

516.96 6,48.000 408.88 
102.35 5,02.335 78.85 
543.31 91.91.798 500.27 
)17.90 

41.13 
167.84 
324.52 1.35.000 249.57 

14,595 53 85 
13.857.17 1 l.736.S9 

642.65 200 197 48 
3(l4.89 30 3CM 85 

200 196.16 
252 11 

206.51 20 205.59 

502 03 900 903.80 
252.43 
311.95 

100 103.29 

200 184.23 
266.3) 

98.99 100 99.02 
250 255.18 
150 153.98 

1.000 1.020.54 
27409 400 21 2.23 
151.83 1,750 1,732.88 

180 197.46 
101.97 10 100.8] 

55 71 84 
8.oJ 558 577.90 

998 1.CM2.77 
1,021.24 210 1.141.85 

153.51 51.91 
100 114.30 

103.34 10 102.85 
496.41 500 490.53 

650 629.46 
250 254.93 

151.46 15 151.69 
5.299.81 I0,497.5~ 

39.51.962 484.1 9 

484.19 

508.85 
l.275.95 

50.50 
100.35 
252.39 
365 13 
251.99 
259.62 

3,064.78 

22.221.76 

22,221.76 

22.121.76 
2,694.81 
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Notti to Con~oUdated Financial Sta lemnt~ for the )CU ended 31 Marrb 1024 
(Amowm in INR m1thon, will.Ss otlun 1st! statu.l) 

8 Financial aucts (Cont'd) 

c) Loans (mcasurNI at amortisl'd cost) 

(I) Loa115 
Non-current (unsccurcd, coruidert'd Rood unless stated otherwise) 
lnler-corporale d(lX>Sits• 
-BaJaj Fmancc L1mi100 
Loans 10 m.1ploycc.• • 

Current (uns~ured. ronsldered Rood unless stat«I othrrwlsc) 
lnltT-corpornlt' deposits• 
-PNB Housin& Finance Limi100 
-Bajaj Fimu1u:· Limited 
Lo.uis 10 cmployc.'t~ •• 

Total loans 

Notes: 
•1111cr-corpora1e dll)OSits placed will1 Jina:ncial in~1i1u11011s )'fold fixed intm.'SI rn1c . 
.. Rcprcsn11 illl('!'CS1 frct" loans 10 employee:,, whicJ1 arc gmcrally rctovcrablc within 24 monthly instalmc::ms. 

d) Olhcr financial assets (measured at amortised cost) 
Non-current (uns«urcd, consldl'rcd good unless stall'd otherwise) 
S«:urily deposits 
Dqx)ii1s witl1 rcrnaining maturi1y for more tl1an twelve momhs (Refer Note. 11) 
Tolal 

Curren I (unscturcd, consldcrNI good unless stated othern·lsc) 
Security dq,osjts 
Amount rocovaabk from paymcu1 gateway 
Od1cr roccivabh:s 
Total 

Noles: 
Socuri1ydq>OSi1s arc no11-i111cre., bearing and arc guicrnlly on IUln of3 10 9 years. 

O1her assets 

Non-current (unscturcd, consldcrl'd good unless s1atl"d otherwise} 
Prq,aid cxpmscs 
l11diree1 Ill.Iles rccovcrablc 
Capital advance 
Total 

Currrnt (Unsct'url'd. considered g.ood unless slated othernise) 
Advances rccovcrablc 
l.mlirro taxrs ru:o\'tTaolc 
Prq>aid e,i;pcnscs 
Otl1C'I'.: 

Total 

Unscturcd. considered good unless stated othcrnisc 
Trade reci..ivablcs 
Rccci\'abks fro111 rdattrl parti(~ (Refer Nole 33) 
Tolal 

Notes: 
a) No 1radc rcct.ivabl~ arc due from directors or otha oOicas of the Group eithlT' SC\'erallyorjointly ~i1h aoy 0U1cr person. 
b} For tlTIIIS and oonduions relating 10 rdatl'd par1y receivables (Rc..-fcr Nole JJ) 
c) Trade receivables are non-imercst bearing and a.re gmerally ou 1cm1s of30 10 180 days. 

Oumanding for following perlodi from dut d11e or p1fmtn1 I 1ran11ttion 
~01 Due 

I.A.,uth•n 
6months 

6 ,\fonlhJ• 1 yc.-• r 

31 Mar<"h 2014 

lindi,out«t, c.-on,idn«l 2ood 

31 M■rth 2023 

Uadi,puted. ton,idered 2ood 

11 Cash anrl bank balanrcs 

a) Cash and cash «1uin1knts 

Chai.ucs on hand 
Balance witl1 bank 
• 011 currrot accounts 
• CX-posns with original 111a1urity oflu;s 1han lhn-c mo111hs• 
Total Cash and cash cquh'alcnts 
•!ncludcs i.111atSI accrued. 

Natl': 

34.15 12.87 

53.32 16.77 

Cash and cash cquivalt111s for the purpose of cash flow statcrna11 comprise cash and ca~h cqul\'0lmts ll'i shown above. 

b ) Bank balan<"cs other lhan cub and <"ash equh>alcnts 
(i) Dq,osits with bank.,; 
• remaining maturity upto 1wcln• momhs 
• r<.1na1ning maturity for more than 1wclvc mo111hs 

Less: Amount disclOSOO. under Otha fmancio.1 a',.SctS non-c..-urrcnt 

(i1) Earmarked balan~ wilh banks• 
Amount disclosed under rnrrcnt ba.nk d<'posils 

• Earmarked balancc.'S includes below items :• 
-Unclaimrd/Unpaid di\idmd 
-Bank balance wnh India.mart Emplo> 

' co gram 1J 

+ 

0.21 

002 

2-)yun 

0.12 

0.36 0.08 

Ant 

31 Mau:h 2024 

64J0 
1.02 

6S.32 

104.0J 

4.28 
108.31 
173.63 

As at 
JI March 2024 

41.96 
0.08 

42.04 

19.46 
229.03 

033 
248.82 

As at 

0.33 
14.10 
1.40 

15.IU 

9.02 
13.29 
40.21 

62.52 

As at 
J I l\larth 2024 

47.25 
0.57 

47.82 

Mort tbao 3 ycan 

0.07 

As al 
31 March 2024 

185.06 

284.9] 
378.0~ 
848.(M 

161.70 
0.08 

161.78 
(0.08) 

161.70 

2.27 
163.97 

0.23 
2.04 

Aul 

31 Marrh 2023 

0.84 
0.84 

52.12 
436 

S6.48 
S7.32 

As at 
JI March 2023 

40.7."\ 

40.73 

7.71 
141.91 

149.62 

Asar 

0.60 
14.61 

15.21 

10.41 
15.'.16 
30.13 
0.03 

55.93 

Asat 
31 March 2023 

68.SS 
2.00 

70.SS 

Tot■I 

47.82 

7055 

Asat 
31 l\larrh 2023 

237.90 

301.45 
41.71 

581,06 

0.03 

0.03 

0.03 

1.66 
1.69 

0.13 
1.53 



lndiaMART JntcrMESH Llntited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stalements for the ~·ear ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

12 Share caJ)ital 

Author ised egullJ shart capital (INR JO pt r share) 

As at O I Ap ril 2022 

As at 31 March 2023 

As at 3 1 March 2024 

Authorlstd 0.01•1. cumulatin prcfrrencC' share capitnl (INR 328 per share) 

As at 01 April 2022 

As at 3 1 March 2023 

As at JI March 2024 

Issued equih• share capital (subscribt'd and run,· paid up) (INR IO per share} 

Shares ou1staoding at thr beginning: of the year 
Bonus issue during the year (refer no1e I below) 

Equity shares issued to lndiamart Ell1)loycc Benefit Trust during the year (refer no1e (d) below) 
Equity shares extinguished on buy back during the year (refer note 2 below) 
Shares outstanding at t br rod of the year 

Equity shares held by lndiamart E111>loyec Benefit Trust as at year encl (refer note (d) below) 

Sharl's outsta nding at t he end of the yl'ar nrt of elimination on eccouot of shared hrld by 
l ndiamart Employt c Dcncfil Trust 

Noles: 

Asal 
31 March 2024 

Number of sh.arcs 
J,06,14,574 
3,06,14,574 

(12,50,000) 

5,99,79,148 
(30,202) 

5,99,48,946 

Amount 

306.15 
306.15 

(12.50) 
599.80 

(0.31) 

599.49 

Number of shares 

9,94,42,460 

9,94,42,460 

9,94,42,460 

Number or shares 

As a1 

31 Mar-ch 2023 
Numbrr of shar es 

J,05,64,574 

2. 10,000 
(1,60,000) 

3,06,14,S74 
(35,35.1) 

3,05,79,221 

Amowll 

994.42 

994.42 

994.42 

Amount 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Amount 

305.65 

2.IO 
( 1.60) 

306. IS 
(0.)6) 

JOS.79 

During the year the Company has issued and allotted 30,614.574 fully paid up Bonus Equity shares (including 35,353 bonus shares issued and held by lndiamart Employee Benefit trusl) of Rs. 10 each on 22 June 2023 in the ratio 
of I: I (i.e. I Bonus Equity stwes for every I e.,isting equity share of the Company) to the shareholders who held shares on 21 June 2023 i.e. Record date. 

During the year, the Board of Directors approved a proposal to buy~back upto 12,50,000 equity shares of the Company for an aggregate amounl not exceeding INR 5,000, being 2.04% of the 1otal paid up equity share capital al 
4,000 per equity share. A Lener of Offer was made to all eligible shareholders. The Company bought back 12.50,000 equity shares out of the shares that were tendered by eligible shareholders and c,tinguishcd the equity shares on 
25 September 2023. Capital redemption reserve was created to the ex lent of share capital c.,tinguished of INR 12.50. The buyback results in a cash outflow of INR 6.198.84 (including transaction costs of INR 36.95 and ta, on 
buyback of INR 1,161.89). The Company funded the buyback from its free resaves including Securities Premium as explained in Section 68 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Utilisation ofQuaLified Instit utions Placement ('QI P') funds 

( i) During the year ended 31 March 202 1. the Company had raised money by the way ofQIP and alloted 1,242,212 equity shares of face value INR 10 each 10 the eligible qualified ill.$ti1u1ional buyers (QIO) at a price of INR 8,615 
per equity share (including a premium of INR R,605 per equity share) aggregating 10 INR 10,701.66 Millions on 22 February 2021. The issue was made in accordance SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations. 2018, as amended. 

Expenses incurred in relation to QIP amounting to INR 189.67 has been adjusted from Securities Premium Account which resulted into the QI P's net proceeds of INR I 0,511.99. 

Out of these proceeds. the Company has utilised till JI March 2024 INR 10,393.08 (31 March 2023 : 10. 138.42) 1owards purposes specified in the placement document from the elate of QIP. The balance amoun1 of QJP's net 
ptoceeds remain invested in liquid instrumen1s. 

{ii) Out of the amoun1 utilised from QIP's net proceeds as mentioned in 2{i) above. INR 1,015.95 has been ulilised through Tradczeal Online Private limited. the wholly owned subsidiary oflhe Company, details of the same are given 
below:-

lnn•stment made through T radczcal Online Prh·atc Limited 

Truckhall Private Limited 
Shipway TechnolOR)' Private Limited 
Legistify Services Private Limited 

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 
~gewise Technologies Private Limi1ed 
Adansa Solutions Private Limited 

Total 

As at 
31 l\tnrch 2014 

2 15.10 
182.00 
87.90 

260.00 
133.45 
137.50 

I 015.95 

Asnt 
31 l\farch 2023 

185.10 
182.00 

87.90 
260.00 

I 33.45 
137.50 

985.95 

Other lhan as disclosed above, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any Other sources or kind of funds) by the Group and itS associates to or in any other 
person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or Olhcrwise) that the Intermediary shall lend or invcs1 in party identified b)' or on behalf of the 
Group and its associates (Ul!ima1e Bcneficiaries).The Group and its associales have not received any funds from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Group and its associates shall whether 
directly or indirect!)• lend or invesl in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Group and its associates (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guaran1ee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate 
beneficiaries. 

a) Ter ms/ rights allachcd to equity shares: 

I) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of fNR IO per share. Each holder of equity is entilled to one vote per share. 

2} In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. after distribu1ion of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 10 
1he number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 



lndiaMART lnttrMESH Limited 
Notes to ConsoUdated Financial S tatements for 1he year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounls in INR million, unless otherwise slated) 

12 Shart capital (Cont'd} 

b) Details of shareholders holding mort than s-;. tquit)· shares in the Company 

Equity shares of Rs, 10 each full) paid 
Dincsh Agarwal 
Brijcsh Agrawal 
Arisaig Asia Fund Limited 

Details of shareholding of promotns 

Promoters 

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal 
Brijesh Kumar Agrawal 

Promoter Croup 
Chctna Agarwal 
Pankaj Agarwal 
Anand Kumar Agrawal 
Meena Agarwal 
Dinesh Chandra Agarwal (HUF) 
Naresh Chandra Agrawal 
Prakash Chandra Agrawal 
Gunjan Agarwal 
Keshar Devi Agrawal 
Vijay Jalan 
Naresh Chardra Agrawal (HUF) 
Anand Kumar AgrawaJ (HUF) 
Prakash Chandra Agrawal (HUF) 
Hamirwasia Business Trust 
Hamirwasia Family Trust 
Nanpara Business Trust 
Nanpara Family Trust 
Total 

c) Shares reserved for issue under options 

As at 
JI March 2024 

Number 

1.68.27,52] 
1,14,0.,,046 

l4,J l,98] 

Asal 

JI Marrh 2024 
Numbrr 

1,68,27,52] 
l.14,0J,046 

),02,600 
2,94,41.l 
1,37,J 19 
1,)6,727 
1.16,987 

78,745 
1,16,989 

)8,998 

19,589 
17,550 
11,701 
11,701 

400 
400 
200 
200 

l,95,14,888 

As at 
31 March 2023 

•;• Holding Number •;. Holding 

28.06¾ 85,90.559 2K.06"o 
19.01% 58,21,329 19.01% 
2.39% 15,16,494 5.02% 

As al 

31 March 2023 
% Holdlng Number 'I• lloldlng o/o Change durlnl: 

lhe ,,ear 
28.06 85,90,559 28.(J(, 
19.01 58,21,)29 19.01 

0.50 I ,54,479 0.50 
0.49 1,50.299 0.49 
0.23 70,000 0.23 
0.23 69,800 0.23 
0.20 59,722 0.20 
0.1) 40,200 0.13 
0.20 40,014 O. IJ 0.07 
0,07 19,908 0,07 

19,709 0.(1(, (0.06) 
0.0] 10.000 0.03 
O.QJ 8,959 0.03 
0.02 5,91) 0.02 
0.02 5,97) 0.02 
0.00 200 0.00 
0.00 200 0.00 
0.00 100 0.00 
0.00 JOO 0.00 

49.22 I ,S0,67,Sl4 49.21 

lnfonnation relating to the Company's share based payment plans, including details of options and SAR units issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial year, options and SAR units outstanding at the end of the year, 
is set out in note 28. 

d) Shares held by lndiamart Employee Bencfil Trust against employees share based payment plans (face n lue: INR 10 each) 

As al As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Number Amount Number Amount 
Opcnin.c balance 35,353 0.36 11,584 0.12 
Purchased during the year 2,10,000 2.10 
Bonus issued during the year )5,)5] 0.)6 
Transfer to employees pursuant to SAR/ESOP exercised (40,504) (0.41) (1,86,231) (1.86) 
Closing balance 30,202 0.31 35,,53 0.36 



lndial\·l;\RT lnterMESII Limited 
Notl'S to Consolidated Financial Statt'ments for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million. unless othenvise stated) 

13 Other equit,· 

Securities premium 
General reserve 
Employee share based payment reser\'C 

Capital redemption reserve 
Retained earnings 
Total other equi~· 

Nature and purpose of reserves and s urplus: 

Asal 
3 1 March 2024 

9,165.06 

372.92 
12.50 

7,211.17 

16 761.65 

a) Securities pre ml um: The Securities premium account is used lo record the premium on issue of shares and is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2011 

A.sat 
3 1 March 2023 

15522.50 
8.4~ 

256.5.S 

1.60 
4,490.03 

20 279.IJ 

b) General reserve: The General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. as the same is created by transrCf from one component or equity 10 another. 

c) Employtt share based payment resen·e: The Employee share based parment reserve is used 10 recognise the compensation related to share based awards issued 10 employees under Company's Sha.re based pa)'mem scheme 

d) Cap ii al re-demptlon reserve: The Capital redanption re;crve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum equal lo the nominal value of the share; so purchased is 1ransrcrrcd to 
capital redemption reserve. The resCl'Ve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of sec1ion 69 or the Companies Act, 2013. 

e) Retainf.'d earnings: Retained earnings represent !he amount of accumulated earnings of the Group. and re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit plans. 

Payable to micro, small and medium 011erprises 

Other trade pa>•ables 
• outstanding dues to others 
Accrued expenses 

Total 

Oucstanding for following years from due date of paymenc / transaction 

31 Morch 2024 

(i) MSME"' • undisooted 
(ii) Others - .,..,..,<T>i,tcd 

Accrued e.xnernes 

31 r,,-1nrch 2023 

(i) MSME* • undisputed 
(ii} Others• undisou1cd 
Accrued CXnNKfS 

• MSME as per !he ti.•11cro. Small and Medmm Enterpnscs Dc.,.elopmcnl Act. 2006. 

I ~ Lease and other financial Uabllities 

(a) Lease liabilities 
Non-current 

Current 

(b) Other financial liabilities 
Non-current 

Deferred Consideration 
Total 

Current 
Payable to employees 
Deferred Consideration 
Security dq,osits 

Other payable* 
Total 

*Includes unclaimcdfunpaid di.,.idend of INR 0.23 (31 March 2023: INR 0.13), 

16 Pro\'Lsions 

Non-current 
Provision for employee benefits (Rerer no1e 27) 

Provision for gratuity 
Pro,•ision for leave encashment 

Total 

Current 
Provision for employee benefits (Rercr note 27) 

Provision for gratuity 
Provision for leave encashment 

Provision-others• 
Total 

Not due 

0.55 
2.16 

338.59 

1.07 
2.42 

267.93 

• Conlingency provision towards indirecl taxes. There is no change in this provision during the year ended 3 1 March 2024. 

Less than I 
year 

2.32 

0.48 

As ;ti 
31 March 2024 

0.55 

4.48 
338.59 

343.62 

J.2 years 

0.26 

As at 
31 March 2024 

A5at 

292.45 
114.22 
406.67 

269.57 
269.57 

276.02 
132.54 

25.38 
433.94 

31 March 2024 

141.35 
127.1 2 
268.47 

40. 19 

41.8 1 
15.38 
97.38 

2.3 years 

0.02 

As at 
31 March 2023 

1.07 

3.18 
267.93 

272.18 

Morr than 
3 years 

As at 
31 March 2023 

340.28 
118.80 --459.08 

355.68 
355.68 

238.01 

0.78 
31.82 

270.61 

Asat 
31 March 2023 

103.38 
93.02 

196.40 

33.51 
28.13 
15.38 
77.02 

-:::~ -
nt 

Total 

0.55 
4.48 

338.59 

1.07 
3.18 

267.93 



lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 
Notts to Consolidated Financial Slatemtnts for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 
{Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise staled) 

17 Contract and other liabiliUts 

Contract Uabilit1es• 
Non-currenl 

Deferred revenue 

Currtnt 
Deferred revCt1ue 
Advances from customers 

Total 

Other liabilities• currtnl 

S1atutory dues 
Ta:c deducted at source payable 
GST payable 
Others 

Total 

Asat 
3 1 March 2024 

5,189.79 
5,189.79 

8,334.57 
875.45 

9,210.02 
14,399.81 

51.33 
354.40 

19.94 
425.67 

• Contract liabilities include consideration received in advance to render services in future periods. Refer Nole 33 for outstanding balances pertaining 10 related parties 

18 lncomt tax assets and LiabWUri 

Income tax assets (net of pro,•isions) 

Non current 
Income tax assets 
Less; Provision for income tax 
Total non cur rent tax assets (net) 

Current 
Income tax assets 
Less: Provision for income ta,; 
Total current tax assets/(Uability) (nf't) 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

72.28 
(12.01) 
60.27 

921.99 
(972.28) 
(50.29) 

As at 
31 March 2023 

4,205.57 
4,205.57 

6,741.96 
677.10 

7,419.06 
II 624.63 

53.20 
297.05 

16.84 
367.09 

As at 
31 March 2023 

1,699.98 
(1 ,615.72) 

84.26 

884.08 
(919.91) 
(35.83) 



lndiaMART lntrrMESH Limited 

Notes to ConsoUdated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise staled) 

19 Revenue from operations* 

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's rc,·enue from contracts with customers: 

Sale of services 
Income from web services 
Income from accounting software sel"\~ces 
Advcnisement and marketing services 
Total 

*Refer note 33 for transactions pertaining to related panics. 

Transaction price allocated to the remaining perfonnance obligations 

The performance obligation is satisfied after the services are rendered for which customers has paid. 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

11,314.22 
537.94 

115.59 
11 967.75 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

9,220.14 
433.73 
200.12 

9 853.99 

The transac1ion price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) i.e. Contract liabilities. as a1 March 3 1. are as follows: 

Web services 
Accounting software services 
Advertisement and marketing services 

The Group has Nil contract assets as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 : Nil). 

As at 
3 1 March 2024 

Within 
12 months 

8,9 11.57 
270.64 

27.8 1 
9 210.02 

More than 
12 months 

4,998.93 
178.97 

11 .89 
5 189.79 

No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company's total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

Changes in the contract liability balances during the year are as follows: 

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 
Acquisition through business combinations 
Measurement period adjustment 
Less: Revenue recognised from contract liability balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Amount received/billed from customers during the year 
Less: Revenue recognised from amount received/billed during the year 
Closing balance at the cod of the year 

20 Other income 

Fair value gain/(loss) on measurement and income from sale of financial assets 

-Fair value gain/(loss) (net) on measurement, interest and income from sale of 
mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative 
investment funds and investment trust 

-Fair value gain on measurement and income from sale oflnvestment in other entities 
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost 
- on bank deposits 
- on corporate deposits and loans 
- on security deposits 
Other interest income 
Dividend Income 
Gain on sale of investment in Associates 
Gain on de-recognition of Right-of-use assets 
Liabilities and pro\~sions no longer required wrinen back 
Net gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment 
Miscellaneous income 

Total 

21 Employee benefits expense 

Salaries, allowance and bonus 
Gratuity expense (Refer note 27) 
Leave encashment expense (Refer note ::!7) 

Contribution to provident and other funds 
Employee share based payment expense (Refer note 28) 
Staff welfare expenses 
Total 

22 Finance costs & C 
.... ~ 0 

Interest cost of lease hab1ht • 
Interest Cost on Deferred 
Total 

As at 
31 March 2023 

\\'ithin More than 
12 mouths 12 months 

7,171.12 4, 134.17 
223.25 52.31 
24.69 19.09 

7 4 19.06 4 205.57 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

I 1,624.62 9,070.37 
241.71 
(19.48) 

(6,560.53) (5,372.02) 
14,742.94 12,186.12 
(5,407.22) (4,482.08) 
14,399.81 11,624.62 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1,778.75 908.20 

286.64 837.99 

8.94 9.77 
13.24 9.00 
2.98 2.99 
1.50 6.20 
4.11 10.46 

0.28 
4.82 4.71 
1.55 4.77 
2.00 2.86 
1.57 8.03 

2,106.10 1,805.26 

For the year ended For t he year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

4,885.40 3,764.97 
81.39 75.73 
83.54 60.65 
78.26 53.55 

253.60 265.66 
58.53 26.79 

5,440.72 4 247.35 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

42.70 47.10 
46.43 34.41 
89.13 81.51 



lndiaMART lnterMESH Lintited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemen ts for the year end ed 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in rNR million, unless otherwise stated) 

23 Depreciation, ~mortisation and impainnenl expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5A) 
Depreciation and impainnent of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note 58) 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 68) 
Total 

24 O ther expenses* 

Content development expenses 
Buyer engagement expenses 
Customer support expenses 

Commission on Sales 
Outsourced sales cost 
internet and other online expenses 
Rates and taxes 

Outsourced support cost 
Advertisement expenses 
Power and fuel 

Repair and maintenance: 
- Plant and machinery 
- Others 

Travelling and conveyance 
Recruitment and training expenses 
Legal and professional fees 
Directors' sitting fees 
Insurance expenses 
Collection charges 
Corporate social responsibility activities expenses 
Rent 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Total 

*Refer note 33 for transactions pertaining 10 related parties. 

25 Earnings per share (EPS) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

116.44 98.-14 
136.36 100.68 
111.8 I 111.63 
364.61 3 10.75 

For the year ended For the year ended 
3 1 March 2024 31 March 2023 

310.45 288.17 
123.61 133.95 
314.15 228.96 
21.02 12.44 

1,381.82 1,312.84 
511.94 469.14 

8.20 4.04 
15.97 17.45 
23.28 26.22 
17.74 15.81 

8.61 6.96 
57.29 39.63 
52.43 33.62 
28.88 26.95 
75.29 117.28 
7.87 5.25 

66.70 45.35 
64.13 49.18 
61.16 54.27 
54.44 30.14 
8.47 10.16 

3 213.45 2 927.81 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the earnings for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent company by the weighted average nwnber of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing the earnings for the period attributable to the equity holders of the parent company by weighted average numher of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the 
weighted a\'erage number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. The following reflects the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Basic 

Net profit as per the statement of profit and loss for computation ofEPS (A) 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS (B)• 

Basic earnings per equity share (NB) 

Diluted 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS* 

Potential equity shares 
Total no. of shares outstanding (including dilution) (C)• 

Diluted earnings per equity share (NC) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

3,339.53 

6,05,22,532 

55.18 

6,05,22,532 

1,51,044 

6,06,73,576 

55.04 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

2,838.27 

6, I 0,66,500 

46.48 

6, I 0,66,500 

2,12,040 

6,12,78,540 

46.32 

There are potential equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 in the fonn of share based awards granted to employees which have been considered in the calculation of diluted earning per 
share. 



lndiaMART lnterMESH Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 3 1 March 2024 
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26 Income tax 

The major components of income tax expense are: 
a) Income tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss 

Particulars 

Current tax expense 
Current tax for the year 

Deferred tax benefit 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Total income tax expense 

b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss) (OCI) 

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCJ during the year. 

Particulars 

Net gain/(loss) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 

c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied b)• statutory income tax rate. 

Profit before tax 
Accounting profit before income tax 
Tax expense at the statutory income tax rate @25. I 7% 
Adjusbnents in respect of differences taxed at lower tax rates 
Adjustment in respect of change in canying amount of investrncnt in subsidiaries 
Adjustment in respect of buyback expenses 
Dividend income received 
Income non-taxable for tax purposes 
Outer non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 
Business losses and unabsorbed depreciation (for which no deferred tax asset recognised) 
Tax expense at the effective income tax rate of 26.50% 
(31 March 2023: 23.55%) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

953.86 

953.86 

250.38 
250.38 

1,204.24 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

(2.02) 

4,543.77 
4,543.77 

1,143.67 
(93.91) 

12.34 
(9.30) 
(1 .03) 

(7.82) 

160.29 

1,204.24 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

950.11 
950.Jl 

(75.60) 

(75.60) 

874.51 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

15.3 I 

3,712.78 
3,712.78 

934.51 
( 191.87) 

44.84 

(3.22) 
(2.63) 

(22.54) 
115.42 

874.51 

The effective tax rate has been increased to 26.50% for Ute year ended 3 I March 2024 from 23.55% for Ute year ended 31 March 2023. primarily on account of long term capital gain 
realised on sale of mutual funds units and investments taxed at lower rate in the previous year. 

d) Breakup of deferred tax recognised in the Balance sheet 

Particulars 

Deferred tax asset 

Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Provision for gratuity 
Provision for compensated absences 
Provision for dinununition of investments in subsidiaries 
Deferred revenue and advance from customers/dealers 
Provision of expenses. allowable in subsequent year 
Ind AS 116 - Leases Liability 
Others 
Total deferred tax assets 

Total deferred tax assets recognised (A) 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds. debentures, units of alternative investment fund 
and investment trust measured at fair value 
Investment in other entities measured at fair value 
Accelerated deduction on lease rent for tax purposes 
Identified intangible assets on business acquisition 
Ind AS II 6 - Right of Use asset 
Others 
Total deferred tax liabilities (8) 

Net deferred tax liabilities (C) = 

0 

OJ ~ra~~l 

+_} 

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

23.65 13.21 

49.35 34.99 
38.48 30.37 
12.04 12.04 
3.12 11.45 

47.65 51.24 
102.35 115.54 

2.61 
279.25 268.84 

(300.40) 
(84.08) 

(241.84) (154.19) 
(1.73) 

(84.22) (111.64) 
(82.26) (95.31) 

(3.00) 
(708.72) (449.95) 

(429.47) (18 1.1 I) 
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26 Income lax (Cont'd) 

e) Breakup of deferred tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss and OCI 
Particulars 

Deferred tax expense/(income) relates ro the following: 
Provision for gratuity 
Provision for compensated absences 
lnvesunent in Other entities measured at fair value 
Investment in debt instrument of subsidiaries measured at fair value 
Provision for diminution of investments in subsidiaries 
Deferred revenue and advance from customers/dealers 
Provision for expenses, allowable in subsequent year 
Investment in mutual funds. exchange traded funds. bonds, debentures. units of alternative investment fund 
and investment trust measured at fair value 
Property. plant and equipmem and iniangible assets 
Ind AS 116 - Right of Use asset 
Ind AS 116 - Leases Liability 
Others 
Deferred tax benefit 

I) Reconciliation of Deferred tax Assets & liabilities: 

Particulars 

Opening balance as of I April 
Tax benefit/(expense) during the year recognised in Statement of profit and loss 
Net Deferred tax liabilities recognised pursuant 10 business combinations (refer note 34) 
Measuremel\l period adjustments (refer note 34) 
Tax impact during the year recognised in OCI 
Closing balance at the end of the year 

g) Disclosed in the balance sheet as follows: 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Deferred Tax Assets 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 

(14.36) 
(8.11) 
87.65 

8.33 
3.59 

216.32 
(37.86) 
(13.05) 
11.46 
(5.61) 

248.36 

As at 31 March 2024 

(181.11) 
(250.38) 

2.02 
(429.47) 

As at 31 March 2024 

(429.47) 

(429.47) 

h) Detail of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet: 

Particulars 

Deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been 
recognised are attributable 10 the following: 

- tax business losses• 
- unabsorbed depreciation 
- other deductible temporary differences 

"Tax losses will expire between FY 2024-2025 to FY 2031-2032. 

As at 31 March 2024 

402.70 
10.02 
5.16 

417.88 

13.52 
(9.96) 

152.42 
39.30 

(12.04) 
44.29 

(11.81) 

(238.22) 

(34.70) 
29.04 

(31.85) 
(0.28) 

(60.29) 

As at 31 March 2023 

(156.42) 
75.60 

(80.35) 
(4.63) 

(15.31) 
(181.1 1) 

As at 3 I March 2023 

(202.86) 
21.75 

(181.11) 

As at 31 March 2023 

383.83 
9.76 
0.80 

394.39 

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right 10 set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same lax authority. 
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27 Oefmed benefit plan and other long term emplo~·cc benefil plan 

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed statutory defined period of sen1ice gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed 
year of sen•ice. The scheme is funded with insurance company in fom, of qualifying insurance policy. This defined benefit plans exposes the Group 10 actuarial risks. such as longevit) risk. interest rate risk 
and salary risk. 

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obliga1ion in re.spec! of its gratuity plan and leave encashment is as follows: 

Gratuity - Defined benefit 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Net liability arising from d efined benefit 

Leave encasbment - other long term employee benefit plan 

Present value of other long tenn employee benefit plan 

a) Reconciliation of the net denned benefit (assel)/Uability and other long lcrm employee benefit plan 

As at 31 March 2024 

446.28 
(264.74) 

181.54 

As at 31 March 2024 

168.93 

As at 31 March 2023 

354.24 
(217.35) 

136.89 

As at 31 March 2023 

121.14 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the dosing balances for the net defined benefit (asset)/liability and other other long term employee benefit plan and its components. 

Reco11ci/ia1io11 of pre.sem \'alue of defined benefit obligation/or Grah,ity and Leal'e encashmem 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Acquisition through business combinations 
Benefits paid 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gains)l1osses 

- changes in demographic assumptions 
- changes in financial assumptions 
- experience adjustments 

Balance at the end of the year 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Acquisition lhrough business combinations 
Benefits paid 
Current service cost 

Interest cost 
Past service cost 
Actuarial (gains)/losses 
- changes in demographic assumptions 

- changes in financial assumptions 
- experience adjusm1ents 

Balance at the end or the year 

Mm:ement in/air \'Oliteofp/a11 assets 

Opening fair value of plan assets 
Acquisition through business combinations 
Interest income 
Actuarial gainsl(losses) 
Contributions from the employer 

Benefits paid 
Closing ratr value of plan assets 

______ ..,Gccratu_lh~·- -----
As a t 31 March 2024 

354.24 

(2334) 
71.33 
25.97 

10.32 

7.76 
446.28 

As al 31 March 2023 

336.31 

21.33 
(25.17) 
61.94 
24.20 

(12.44) 
(31.19) 
(20.14) 

354.24 

Leave cncashmcnt 

As a t 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

121.14 75.21 
2.29 

(35.75) (17.01) 
47.76 62.78 
8.31 5.07 

2.82 

7.06 (4.46) 
3.25 (8.50) 

17.16 2.94 
168.93 121.14 

------~G~ratu_lh~·--,-----
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

217.35 146.02 
9.00 

15.91 I0.41 
9.25 (4.00) 

46.20 81.00 
(23.97) (25.08) 
264.74 217.3~ 

Each year the management of the Group reviews the level of funding requried as per its risk management strategy. The Group expects to contribute to graruity INR 84.01 during the year ended 31 March 

2024 (31 March 2023: INR 14.04). 

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of1hc fair value of the total plan assets are as follows: 

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

Funds managed by insurer I 00.00% 100.00% 
The overall expected rate ofretum on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period o"er which the obligation is to be settled. 
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27 Defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefit plan (Cont'd) 

b) Expense reco1,rn.ised in profit or loss 

Current service cost 
Net interest expense 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability: 
Ac1uarial (gain)/lo.ss on plan assets 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation 
Com ponents of deftned benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive Income 

Current service cost 
Past service co.st 
Net interest expense 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on other long lmn employee benefit plan 
Components of other long term employee benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 

c) Acluarial assumptions 
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages): 

Discount rate 
Ex peeled rate of return on assets 

Attriiion rate: 

Ages 
Upto 30 years 
Above 30 years 

Future salary growth 
Year 1 
Yem- 2 

Y car J and onwards 

Mortality table 

As at 31 March 2024 

Upto 4 years of Above 4 )"ears o ( 

service service 

32.00% 32.00% 
12.00% 12.00% 

12.25% 12.25% 
12.25% 12.25% 
12.25% 12.25% 

India Assured Life Moratility (2012•14) 

The Group regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long•tenn plans and prcvalenl industry standards. 

d) Sensith•ity analysis 

Gratuity 
For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

71.33 61.94 
10.06 13.79 
8 1.39 75.73 

(9.25) 4.00 
18.08 (64.37) 

8.83 (60.37) 

Leave encashment 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

47.76 

8.31 
27.47 
83.54 

As at 31 March 2024 

7.10%-7.15% 
7.10%-7.15% 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

62.78 
2.82 

5.07 
(10.02) 

60.65 

As at 31 March 2023 

7.30-7.35% 
7.30-7.35% 

As al 31 March 2023 

Upto 4 years of 
sen,lce 

31.06% 
12.29% 

12.23% 

12.23% 
12.07% 

Above 4 years of 
sen•icc 

31.06% 
12.29% 

12.23% 
12.23% 
12.07% 

India Assured Life Moratility (2012-14) 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 10 one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affec1ed the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown 

Gra tuity 

For the year ended 31 March 2024 
Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50% 
Impact of change in salary by 0.50% 

For th(' year ended 31 March 2023 
Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50% 
Impact of change in salary by 0.50% 

Increase 

(23.57) 
10.26 

Increase 

(18.86) 
8.44 

Decrease 

26.84 
(10.13) 

20.70 
(8.79) 

Although the analysis docs not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown. 

e) The table below summarises I.he maturity profile a nd d uralion of the gratuity Uabilif)•: 

Pa r1iculars 
Within one year 
Within one • three years 
With.in three• five years 
Above five years 
T otal 

As at 31 March 2024 

40.16 
67.78 
57.16 

281.18 
446.28 

As at 31 March 2023 

33.51 
53.70 
42.69 

224.34 
354.24 
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28 Share based payment plans 

The lndiamart Employee Stock Benefit Scheme-2018 was approved by shareholders in annual general meeting held on May 07, 2018 . The scheme is designed to provide 
incentives to employees to deliver long-term returns. Under the plan, participants are granted options which vest upon completion of upto 72 months of service from the grant dare. 
Participation in the plan is at the board appointed committee's discretion and no individual has a contractual right to panicipatc in the plan or to receive any guaranteed benefits. 

The Company has set up a trust to administer the scheme under which Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) and Stock options(ESOP), with substantially similar tyj)es of share based 
payment arrangements, have been granted to employees. The scheme only provides for equity settled grants to employees where by the employees can purchase equity shares by 
exercising SAR units/options as vested at the exercise price specified in the grant, there is no option of cash settlement. 

a) Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) 

The details of activity have been summarized below: 

For the vear ended 31 March 2024 
Number of options Weighted Average 

Outstanding at the beginning of tl1e year 
Granted during the year 
Forfeited/ expired during the year 
Exercised during the year 
Outstanding at the end of the year 

Exercisable at the end of the year 

Figures for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as folio,.~: 

Range of exercise prices (INR) 
Number of options outstanding 

Weighted average remai,ting contractual life of options (in years) 
Weighted average exercise price (fNR) 
Weighted average share price for the options exercised during the year (INR) 

Stock Options granted 

35,784 

1,141 
7,952 

26,691 

Exercise Price (lNR) 

10 
10 
10 

The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity sen led ESOPs are given in the table below: 

Figures for the year ended 31 Marci, 2024 and 31 March 2023 arc as follows: 

For the vear ended 31 March 2023 
Number of options 

45,050 

5,061 
4,205 

35,784 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

10 
26,691 

2 
10 
JO 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (INR) 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

10 
10 
10 

10 
35,784 

3 
10 
10 

ESOP 2022 
For the year ended 

3 I March 2024 
For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

Weighted average share price (INR) 6,662 6662 
Exercise price (INR) 10 10 
Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise period) in years 4 4 

Value of options method Market price of stock* Market price of stock* 
• Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date and hence volatility, expected dividends and average risk-free interest rate is not applicable. 

b) Stock a ppreciation r ights (SAR) 

The Company has granted stock appreciation rights 10 its employees. Details of activity swnmarized below: 

(i) SAR 2018* For the vear ended 31 Morch 2024 For the vear ended 31 March 2023 

Outstanding al the begiiming of the year 
Granted during the year 
Lapsed during the year 
Exercised during the year 
Expired during the year 

Outstanding at the end of the year 
Exercisable at the end of the year 

Number of SAR units Weighted Average Number of SAR units 
Exercise Price (INR) 

2,03,658 

2,028 
2,01,630 

• 31 March 2024 : Nil (31 March 2023 : 175,893) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the year. 

Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (INR) 

500 

500 
500 
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28 Share based payment plans (Cont'd) 

SAR 2018 units granted 

The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity settled plans are given in the table below: 

Weighted average share price (INR) 

Exercise Price (INR) 

Expected Volatility 

Historical Volatility 

Life of the options granted (Vesting and 
exercise year) in years 
Expected dividends 

Average risk-free interest rate 
Value of options method 

(ii) SAR-Others* For the vear ended 31 March 2024 

For the year ended 3 1 
March 2024 

For the year ended 31 
March 2023 

597 597 

500 500 

4 1% 41% 

41% 41% 

4 years 4 years 

Nil Nil 

7.8% 7.80% 
Black-Scholes valuation Black-Scholes valuation 

model model 

For the \'ear ended 3 1 March 2023 

Number of SAR units Weighted Average Number of SAR units Weighted Average 
Exercise Price (INR) 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Granted during the year 
Lapsed during the year 
Exercised during the year 
Expired during the year 
Outstanding at the end o f the year 
Exercisable at the end of the year 

60,066 

70,590 
7,946 

12,544 

1,10,166 

Exercise Price (INR) 

10 73,600 

6,813 
10 5,800 

10 60,066 

• 3 1 March 2024: 24,600 (3 1 March 2023: 6,163) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the year. 

Range of exercise prices (INR) 

Nwnber of units outstanding 

\1/cighted nveroge remaining contracnml life of units (in years) 

Weighted average exercise price (INR) 

SAR units granted 

The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity settled plans are given in the table below: 

Weighted average share price (INR) 

Exercise Price (INR) 

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise year) in years 
Value of options method 

For the year ended 31 
March 2024 

IO 

1,10,166 

2.96 
10 

For the 1•ear ended 31 

5,198-7,135 

10 
·4-6 years 

Market price of stock* 

10 

10 

10 

For the year ended 31 
March 2023 

10 

60,066 
?..78 

10 

For the \'Car ended 31 

6,662-7,135 

10 - 500 
4 years 

Market price of stock* 

• Fair value has been considered as stock price of the day prior to the grant date and hence volat ility, expected dividends and average risk-free interest rate is not applicable, 

Effect of the employee share-based pavment p la ns on the profit and loss: 

Total Employee Compensation Cost pertaining to share-based payment p lans 
Compensation Cost pertaining to equity-settled employee share-based payment plan included above 

Effect of the employee share-based payment pla ns on its financial position: 

Total reserve for employee share based payments outstanding as at year end 

For the year ended 31 
March 2024 

253.60 
253.60 

For the year ended 31 
March 2024 

372.92 

For the year ended 31 
March 2023 

265.66 
265.66 

For the year ended 3 1 
March 2023 

256.55 
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29 Fair ,,alue mrasu.rements 

a) Cattgory wist' details as 10 carrying \'alue, fair ,·alue and the le"el of fair ,·aluc mcasurt"mcnt hierarch~· of thr Croup's financial lnstrumrnts are as follons: 

Financial as.sels 
a) Measured al fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL) 
• Investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds and government 

securities (Refer Nole b(iii) below) 

-lnvesments in Investment Trust (Refo- Note b(iii) below) 
- Investment in bonds & debentures (Refer Note b(v) below) 
- Investment in equity/preference instruments of otho- entities 
(Refer Note b{iv) below) 
- Investment in debt instruments of associa1es (Refer 

Note b(v) below) 

b) Measured al amortised cost (refer note (bXi) and 
(ii)below) 
- Trade receivables 
- Cash and cash equivalents 
- Loans to employees 
- Inter-corporate deposits 
- Security deposits 
- Dq)osits wilh Banks 
- Other financial assets 

Total financial assets (a+b) 

Flnanc.ial liabilities 
a) Measured at amortised cost (refer note (bXi) and (ii)) 
- Trade payables 
- Security deposits 
- Other financial liabilities 
- Lease liabilities 
Tolal financial liabilities 

b) The following methods I assumptions were used to estimate the fair \'alues: 

Ltvel 

Level I 
Level I 
Level 2 

Level 3 

Level 3 

Asal Asat 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

16,921.95 11,736.59 
484.19 

5,299.81 10,497.55 

2,504.81 2,210.52 

190.00 155.00 
24,916.57 25,083.85 

47.82 70.55 
848.04 581.06 

5.30 5.20 
168.33 52.12 
61.42 48.44 

164.05 1.69 
229.36 141 .91 

1,524.32 900.97 
26,440.89 25 984.82 

343.62 272.18 
0.78 

703.51 625.51 
406.67 459.08 

1,453.80 l ,1~7.55 

i} The carrying value of deposits with Banks, lnter--corporate deposits with Financial institulions, trade receivables, loans to employees. cash and cash equivalents. trade payables, socurity deposi1s. lease liabilities and other financial assets and 
other financial liabililies measured at amortised cos! approximate their fair value due to the shon•tenn maturities of these instruments. These have been assessed basis counterparty credit risk. 

ii) The fair value of non-current financial as.sets and financial liabilities measured are determined by discounting future cash flows using current rates of ins1rumen1s with similar 1enns and credit risk. The current rates used does not reflect 
significant changes from the discount rates used initially. Therefore, the carrying value of these instruments measured at amortised cost approximate their fair ,,alue. 

iii) Fair value of quoted mutual funds. cxchange traded fund, investment trust and government securities is based on quoted market prices at the rcponing date. We do not ex poet material volatility in these financial assets. 

iv) Fair value of investment in equity/preference/ and debenture instruments of 01her en1i1ics is estimated based on discounted cash flows / market mulliple valuation technique using the cash flow projections, discount rate and credit risk and 
are classified as Level 3. 

v) Fair value of Investment in debt insluments of associa1cs is estimated based on discounted cash flows / market multiple valuation technique using the cash now projections. discount rate and credit risk and are classified as Level 3. 

vi) Fair value of the quoted bonds and debentures is determined using observable market's inputs and is classified as Level 2. 

~&Cq'-
0s~<\ co ~ gram~ 

+ 
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29 Fair value measurements (Cont'd) 

c) (i) Following table describes the \'aJuatlon techn.iqurs used and key inputs thereto for the le\·el 3 financial assets; 

Financial assets 

l m•estment in equJty/preference instruments of 
other entities 
Legistify Services Priva1e Limited. Mynd Solutions 

Private Limited. Zimyo Con.suiting Private Limited, 
Fleet.'<. Technologies Private Limited and lns!ant 
Procurement Services Private Limited 

Valuation 
ltchnlqul'(s) 

Significant Uoob.servable 
lnputs 

Market multiple and i) Discount rate 
Discounted cashflow ii) Terminal growth rate 
approach iii) Market multiples 

(Comparable Companies) 
iv) Revenue gr<m1h rate 

Significaa1 Ult0bun·1ble inpul ru~e 

For du: )'Hr r:aded 
31 ~lartb 2024 

i) 23.6% - 28.5'¼ 
ii)4¾ -5% 
iii) 3.2x - l2.2x 
iv) Budgeted and forccasted 
revenue 

For the year c-nded 
31 l\lartb 2023 

i) 24.5% - 28.5% 
ii)4% 
iii) 2. Ix• 7.2x 
iv) 8udge1ed and 
forecasted revenue 

Inter-relationship between 
sign.ifiant unobservable input 

and fair vaJut measurement 

The estimated fair value of 
lnvestmeru in Other en1i1ies will 
l.ncreasel (decrease) if the 
Terminal grcl\\1h rate and Market 
multiple is higher/ (lower). 
The eslimated fair value of 
Investment in Other entities will 
Increase! (decrease} if the 
Discount rate is (Jov.,er)' higher. 

Investment in debt instruments of associates at FVTPL represents amount invested in Compulsory Convenible Debentures instruments wtiich shall be convertible inlo Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares in the near future. Considering 
the nature of invcs1mcnlS, there is no material change in the significant unobseivable inputs for investment in deb! instruments of associates as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

d) 

Sensitivity: 

For the fair value of investment in other entities, reasonably possible changes in significant unobservable inputs at the reporting date would have the following effect 

Discount Rate: 
+ 1% change 
-1% change 

Long tenn Growth Rate: 
+1% change 
-1¾ change 

Market Multiple: 
+2.5% change 

-2.5% change 

Revenue gr<m1h rate: 
+1% change 
-1% change 

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements 

Opening balance 
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss (net) 
Addi1ions 
DisposaJs/Extinguishment 

Change in status ofinveslment to Associate 
Conversion of debt instrnmcnt in associate to equity 
Closing balance 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 Mar ch 2024 31 March 2023 

(54.80) (59.38) 
60.32 65.81 

27.12 25.09 
(24.54) (22.90) 

19.97 21.38 
(19.98) (21.38) 

20.84 60.08 
(20.48) (55.52) 

e) During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. there were no transfers due to re-classification into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements 

Jm•estmfltl In tquity/pn•ference lrutruments or other 
entities/investment in debt instruments of associates 

For the year ended 
3 1 March 2024 

2,365.52 
286.64 
117.65 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

1,719.05 

837.99 
395.68 

(274.4X) 

(312.72) 
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30 Capital management 

The Group manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as a going concerns while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the borrowings and equity balance. 
The capital structure of the Group consists of no borrowings and only equity of the Company. 
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

The Group re,~ews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capitaJ. risks associated with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of 

adequate liquidity. 

31 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Group is exposed to market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's board of directors have O\'erall responsibility for the establishment and oversigh1 of the Group's risk management 
framework. The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to 
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. 

The Group's board o,·ersees how management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to 
the risks faced by the Group. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes regular reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are 
reponed to the audit committee. 

i) Credit risk ma nagement 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 10 meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's cash and cash 
equivalents, bank deposits, inter.corporate deposits and investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and units of investment trust with 
reputed banks and financial institutions. 

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. 

Credit risk management considers available reasonable and supportive forward•looking infonnation including indicators like external credit rating (as far as available), macro•economic infom1ation (such 
as regulatory changes, government directives, market interest rate). 

Trade receivables 
The Group majorly collects consideration in advance for the services to be provided to the customer. As a result, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk on trade receivables. 

Cash and cash equivalents and investments 
Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and investments in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and wtits of investment trust. 

The Group mainlains its cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, inter. corporate deposits and investment in mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds 
and units of investment trust with reputed banks and financial institutions. The credit risk on these instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by 
international credit rating agencies. 

Sec11rity deposits and loans 
The Group monitors the credit rating of the counterparties on regular basis. These instruments cany very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of parties and Group's historical experience of 
dealing with the parties. 

ii) Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both nonnal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Groups 's reputation. 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk mnnngcment framework for the management of the Group's short 
term, medium-tenn and long•tenn funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities, and continuously monitoring 
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturi1y profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 
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31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd ) 

Maturities of financial liabilities 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undis.countcd payments: 

ContrJctual maturities of financial liabilities 

As at 3 1 Man:h 2024 
Trade payables 
Lease and other financial liabilities 

As at 31 March 2023 
Trade payables 
Lease and other financial liabilities 

iii) Market risk 

Within 1 year 

343.62 
568.53 
912. 15 

\Vltbin 1 )'ear 

272.18 
389.41 
661.59 

Between I and S years 
and thereafter 

658.41 
658.41 

Between I and S years 
and thereafter 

886.89 
886.89 

Total 

343.62 
1,226.94 
1,570.56 

Total 

272.18 
1,276.30 
1,548.48 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, 
currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include foreign currency receivables, deposits, investments in mutual funds, 
exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds, units of investment trust and investment in other entities. 

a) Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign 
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). The company's exposure to unhedged foreign currency risk as at 31 
March 2024 and 31 March 2023 is not material. Currency risks related to the principal amounts of the compan}'s US dollar trade receivables. 

b) Interest rate risk 
Investment of short-term surplus funds of the Group in liquid schemes of mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund and investment trust provides high 
level of liquidity from a portfolio of money market securities and high quality debt and categorized as 'low risk' product from liquidity and interest rate risk perspectives. 

Sensiti,•lty 

+ 5% change in NA V of mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund and 
units of investment trust. 

- 5% change in NA V of mutual funds, exchange traded funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund and 
units of investment trust. 

Impact on profit before tax 
For the year ended 

31 March 2024 

1,111.09 

(1,111.09) 

~ 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

1,135.92 

(1,135.92) 

Ii ~ ). 

* 
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32 Sqtmtnl lnform• lioo 

Operating SC[!.lnCnts arc ddioeJ as componl:DIS ofan cntcrpru.,: for v.·h1ch dlSCT\,1c financial mfomialion 1s 3\'i3.l\3bk th31 is C\.iluatOO ~gularly by the chicfopefflmg d~1s1on lll.3L.'I', m dccid1ng how It• alloc1uc rL-SOU.fCC'$ and assessmg p,.,fonlJJ.llcc 

Punruant to acquisition ofllusy lnfotcch Prl\"at,: JjmiteJ and l.J1"Cka.-ping Tl'\:hnolog11.:s Pri\-;itc Limited (fom1erly known as Finhlo.' TL"Chnr,log1cs Pm-;itc limneJ) dunng the pr..'1.1ous )\:M, Lb,: Grour had 1den1ified two busmi:ss scpucnts nan><:I) ~w.:h 
and related S¢n1ces" and ~Accountmp. Sollvian: St'Tlices~ as rq,onablc s.:pncnts bas«! on the nature o f the product.,;. the nsks and r..1ums. thc organ11..1ti()tl structure and the mtanal financial rq,omnp S)'Sh .. ,m 

Web and rdatOO sen ices r,..--n..,ins to onlme B~U Ill.llkL-tpbcc for business products and sen1ccs. h pro\idi:s a platform 10 diSC<l\\.'!' rroducu 3nd sa,.1ccs and conntet 111·ith the suppli~ of such products and §t.'f\ic-1.'S. Accou111inp ~ftware ~'f\ices include<; 
business of dC\\:lopm,:nt. S)"Sh.."lll analysis. des1gnmg and m.1tkctioJ of intcgr:11cd business accounting SQ flu :ir~ to hdp a.nd ru.tnagc businesses "'11h inm:a'iCt.l efficiency 

Segment accounting Polkks 

1bc accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial st.1tements an: ronsistL'fllly applied IC\ r«ord n:wnuc and expenditure tn ind1\1dual ~gments and ar\' as 5(."f out in nolc ::! on material accountinc policies. The accounune policies in relation 
to segment accounting are as under: 

(a) Segment re ... enuc and e.qx-n§o;S 

Segimmt rt,'\'CtlUC is dir«1Jy anributablc 10 lhc segment and sc1men1 expenses have bc\."O allocated 10 \'3.rious scgrn\.'TIIS on the basis of specific idcntifica1ion. Segmcru r1;'\\.'11UC docs not include other mcomc. Scpncnl expenses do not include finance cost. 
I.X-pr1.X:i.1tion, a:rnorti1.:11ion and impairment, C.lCcptional items. ta..'< exrcnsc and share ofloss of associate-s 

(b) ScgIDL--nt assets and liablitics 

Assets and habilities d11\.-c1lya1tribut.1blc or allocable to segments are d1sc\oscd under each reportabli! segment 

1:inancial infonn.1tion about the busine» sc~ments for the ~ ended 3 I March 20::!4 and 31 March ~0::!3 is as follr,ws 

Rn·cnuc from opcr11ioo5 from utrrn■I tu, tomrrs 
inter• scomr:nt rc\'\:nuc 
SHmtnl rr,·rnuC!I 
S~m<'nl rrsul11 
Finance Cost 
0..'fll'cciation. amortisa1ioo and impairment expense 
O1.bcr income 
Profit before shuc of l~s In assod■res. cntplion■I iltm5 •nd tax 
Share in net loss ofassoci3tcs 
Profi1 btfort uccp1lon1I \rems .nd 111 
Exceptional ilcm5 
Profit btfor(' IH 
Taxexn.:nsc 
Profit for lht ·t11r 

lnfomralitm about g,,;graphicul arca.s: 

For 1hr )'Hr tflded 
31 M• rc.h 2024 

Wtb • nd rrl11Nt Atcounlin(I Soft"·arc 

11,429.81 537,94 

I I 429.81 537.94 
J.JS2.4~ 38.87) 

Total 

11,967.75 

II 967.75 
3.31B,8 

(89.13) 
(364.61) 

:!.106.10 
4,96~.94 
(403.94) 

4,S62.00 
(18.2)) 

4,543.71 
(1,:?04.24) 
3.339.~3 

For lht )'tu tndtd 
31 fot.rch 2023 

Web ud rtl11td Accounting Softwur 

9.420.26 433.73 

9,420.26 433.73 
2.~77.08 101.7~ 

9,853.99 

9,853.99 
2.678.83 

(81.SI) 
(310.75) 

1.805.::!6 
4.09UIJ 
(379.05) 

3,712.78 

3,712.78 
(874.51) 

2,838.27 

The Group's re\-cnuc from continuing 0~1ions from c~t\.Tnal customers by loe.1tion ofopcrauons and infonu.ation of its noo<urren1 assets by Joe.inion ofassct.s arc detailed bclO'tlo': 

Forlhe ~ended JI Man:h::!.0:!4and31 Man.-.b::!0::!3 

Rc,·cnue from nlrrn1I cuJtomcrs 

India 
Others 

hldia 

°"'"' 

For 1hr )'ttr end<'d 31 Much 2024 

Wrb , nd rtlu td Arcounllng Sofn..-.rr 

11,383.::!6 5::!0.36 
46.55 17 58 

11,429.81 ~.'7.94 

Ai•t 
JI :\hrch 1024 

Wtb • nd related Acco-unling SoflYrorc 
sen•krs 1r rvln·s 

494.74 4 ,885.94 

494.14 4,88~.94 

TOf11I 

11.903.62 
64.13 

11,967.75 

SJS0.68 

~.380.68 

• Non-current assets exclude financi3l 3.SSL1S, in,~tmcnl in associates, dcfL"'!Tcd tax aSS1.'IS. ia., asscts Md p)st-cruploymen\ bo.-ne fi1 assets. 
Nu sin~lc customer "-l'rcscnL,; 10~,.or more of the Gro1Jp0s total l'C'.\..-nuc for lhe year cnd.:J 3 I Mmh ::!024 and 31 March 20~j. rcspccth-cl)' 

s-mtbl t,U('ti •nd ll• b ilitlc:s 

A~ 11 JI :\h~b 202-1 

Wtb •nd r<'llllt'd I A<'coontinl( Softwu,1 
sen·kn u n·kn 

l:DIIIIK'• ble I 
Segment assets 12,765.~9 r 6.366.~7 I 5.354_4~ I 
Si!i!mcnl liabilitics 16.070.87 1.054.0::! 

for lbt year r ndtd 31 l\111rth 2013 

Wtb •nd rtl•t«I Accounting Softw11rt 

9,337.25 404.87 
83.01 ::!8.86 

9.420.26 433.73 

As • I 31 Marth 2023 

Web 11nd tC'lattd Acrountina Sori"11rr 
1rn·ltH nnicn 

551 .19 4.996.86 

4.996.86 

To111I 

9.742.1~ 
111.87 

9.8H99 

Tot•I 

5,548.05 

AJll 31 M• rch 2023 

Total Web 11nd r<'l•ted I Atcoun1ing I 
stn•lce:, Soff\'l·ur R nicn 

Un.lllK'■blc I 
34.486.03 ::!::!.<>80.361 6.275.93 I 5,490.0~ I 
17,124.89 13.007.13 854.25 

TOf■I 

34.446.30 

13,861.38 



India MART InterMESII Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in fNR million, unless otherwise stated,_) ___ ______________________________ ________________ _ 

33 Related party transactions 
i) Names or related parties and related party relationship: 

a) Entity's subsidiaries & associates 

b) Key Management Personnel (KMP): 
Name 
Dinesh Chandra Agarwal 
Brijesh Kwnar Agrawal 
Prateek Chandra 
Manoj Bhargava 
Dhruv Prakash 
Rajesh Sawhney 
Elizabetl1 Lucy Chapman 
Vivek Narayan Gour 
Pallavi Dinodia Gupta 
Aakash Chaudhry 

c) Relatives of Key Management Personnel (KMP)* 
Bharat Agarwal 
ClteUJa Agarwal 
Gunjan Agarwal 
Anand Kumar Agrawal 
Meena Agrawal 
Pankaj Agarwal 
Naresh Chandra Ab-rawal 
Prakash Chandra Agrawal 
Shravani Prakash 
Anjani Prakash 
Megha Bhargava 
Sphuni Gupta 

d) Entities where Key Management Personnel (KMP) exercise significant influence.* 
Mansa Enterprises Private Limited 
Mynd Solutions Private Limited 
S R Dinodia & Co LLP 
Dinesh Chandra Agarwal HUF 
Nanpara Family Trust 
Nanpara Business Trust 
Haminvasia Business Trust 
Hamirwasia Family Trust 
National Engineering Industries Limited 

e) Other related parties 

Subsidiaries 

Associates 

Hello Trade Online Private Limited 
Tradezcal Online Private LU11ited 
Tolexo Online Private Ltd 
Pay With lndiamart Private Limited 
Busy Infotech Private Limited (with effect from 06 April 2022) 

Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Fonnerly known as Fin lite Technologies 
Private Limited) (with effect from 23 May 2022) 
Livekeeping Private Limited (Subsidiary of Livekeeping Tcclmologies Private Limited, 
with effect from 23 May 2022) 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 

Ten Times Online Private Limited (ceased to be an associate with effect from 16 March, 
2023) 

Truckhall Private Limited 
Shipway Technolo1,,y Private Limited 
Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 
Edgewise Teclmologies Private Limited 
I B Monotaro Private Limited 
Adansa Solutions Private Limited (w.e.f April 06, 2022)) 
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited (with effect from 03 November 2022) 

Designation 
Managing Director & CEO 
Whole time director 
Chief financial officer 
Company Secretary 
Non-executive director 
Independent director 
Independent director (Resigned with effect from 07 October 2022) 
Independent director 
Independent director (Appeinted with effect from 20 October 2022) 
Independent director (Appeinted with effect from 20 July 2023) 

Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust (administered Trust to manage employees share based payment plans of the Company) 
lndiamart lntennesb Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme (administered Trust to manage post-employment defined benefits of employees of the Company) 

•With whom the Group had transactions during the year. 

ii) Key management personnel compensation 

Shon-tenn employee benefits 

Post-employment benefits 
Other long-tenn employee benefits 

Employee share based payment 

For the year ended 
3 I March 2024 

168.07 
0.28 
3.67 

28.67 
200.69 

For the year ended 
3 I March 2023 

154.26 
0.04 
1.79 

13.76 
169.85 



lndiaMART l nterMESH Lintited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

33 Related party transactions (Cont'd) 

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with the related parties for the year: 

Particulars 

Entities where KMP exercise Significant influence: 
Rent & related miscellaneous expenses 
Mansa Enterprises Private Limited 

Tax consultancy and litigation support sen •ice 
S R Dinodia & Co LLP 

Purchase oflnvesbnent 
Mynd Solutions Private Limited 

Sale oflnvesunent 
Mynd Solutions Private Limited 

KMP and relatives of KM"P's: 
Recruitment and training expenses 
Key management personnel 

Bonus share issued (Face Value IQ/ . each) 
Key management personnel 

Relatives of Key Management Persoru1el 
Entities where Key Management Personnel exercise significant 
influence 

Dividend paid 
Key management personnel 
Relatives of Key Management Personnel 
Entities where Key Management Personnel exercise significant 
influence 

Remuneration 

Relatives of Key Management Personnel 

Director's sitting fees 

Other services availed 
Relatives of Key Management Persormel 

Associates 
Investment in associates 
TruckhalJ Private Limited 
1B MonotaRO Private Limited 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 
Adansa Solutions Private Limited 
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited 

Sale oflnvestmcnt in associates 

Ten Times Online Pvt. Ltd 

Bonus Shares Received 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 
-Equity Shares Capital (Face value 10/- each) 
-Compulsory convertible preference shares (Face value JOO/-
each) 

Web, advertisement & marketing services provided to 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 
18 Monotaro Private Limited 
Mynd Solutions Private Limited 
Nat ional Engineering Industries Limited 

Miscellaneous services provided to 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 

lntemet and online services availed from 
Ten Times Online Pvt. Ltd 

Marketing services availed from 

1B Monotaro Private Limited 

Purchase of Fixed Assets 

18 Monotaro Private Limited 

lndiamart Employee Benefit Trust 

Share capital issued 
Bonus share capital issued 
Dividend oaid 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

5.34 

1.60 

3.00 

145.54 
5.72 
0.60 

29 1.09 
11.45 

1.21 

0.98 

7.30 

0.96 

30.00 
137.36 

80.00 

0.11 
14.75 

7.25 
1.39 
5.00 
0.0 1 

0.08 

0.02 

0.36 
0.7 1 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

2.64 

240.68 

137.3 I 

2.25 

29.06 
I.I 3 
0.12 

4.86 

75.00 

39.78 
137.50 
231.18 

1.21 

16.47 
0.32 

0.43 

0.05 

2. 10 

0.1 5 

t 



India MART InterMESH Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

JAmounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

33 Related party transactions (Cont'd) 

Terms a nd conditions of transactions with related parties 

The transactions with related parties are entered on tenns equivalent to those that prevail in ann·s length transactions. Outstanding balances as at the period 
end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or 
payables. This assessment is undenaken each financial year Lhrough examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 
party operates. 

The following table discloses the related panies balances at the year end: 

As at Asat Balance Outstanding at the year end 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Associates 
Investment in egui!Y instruments of associates {at cost}• 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 967.30 967.30 
Truckhall Private Limited 185.10 110.10 
Shipway Technology Private Limjted 182.00 182.00 
Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 260.00 260.00 
Edgewise Technologies Private Lllnited 133.45 133.45 
1B MonolaRO Private Limited 1,179.13 1,04 1.77 
Adansa Solutions Private Limited 137.50 137.50 
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited 463.90 463.90 

Investment in debt instruments of associates (at FVTPL) 
Truckhall Private Limited 30.00 75.00 
Mobisy Technologies Private Lllnited 160.00 80.00 

Trade receivables 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 0.57 2.00 

Trade Payable {including accrued expenses} 
S R Dinodia & Co LLP 0.98 
Mansa Enterprises Private Limited 0.07 
Key Management Personnel 0.25 

.Contract Liabilities 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 2.53 
18 Monotaro Private Limited 3.71 1.1 0 

Investment in Entities where KMP and Individuals exercise Sib'llificant influence (at FVTPL} 

Mynd Solutions Private Limited 585.01 577.36 
•noes not mclude share of profit/loss of associate as accow1tcd under equity method 



Jndiamart lntermcsh LlmUed 
Notes to Consolidated Financia l Stalcments for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounts in INR million. unless otherwise stated) 

34 Bwluess Combination 

a) Acquisition of Busy lnfotech Private Limlled ("Busy lnfotech") 

On 24 January. 2022. the Group had signed the Share Purchare Agreement (SPA) for acquiring I 00% equity in1ercs1 in Busy lnfotech for a consideration or INR 5.000. Busy lofo1ech is engaged in the 
business or development. system analysis. designing and marketing of integrated business accounting software (known as Busy accounting software) The acquisition would help the Company 10 offer 
accounting software solutions to businesses in line with its long 1enn vision of enabling businesses. 

The acquisition consummated on 06 April. 2022 and the Group had paid JNR 5.000 in cash. 

The 101al purchase consideration of JNR 5.000 was allocated based on management estimates to 1he acquired assets and liabilities as follows: 

Particulars As at 01 Aorll 2022 
Net workin[?. canital (lncludinc cash orINR 33.11 millions) 433.06 
Deferred tax liabilitiesfNet) 176.17) 
Non current Liabilities (46.11 
Prooenv. nlant and eouioment 8.65 
Software 0.77 
ROU 2.79 
lntancible assets 

Technolo~v 173.68 
Channel Network 365.62 

Goodwill 4,137.71 
Purchase Coruideration 5,000.00 

The table below shows the values and lives or intangible assets recognized on acquisition: 

Amount Life (Years) 
Technoloev 173.68 
Channel Network 365.62 
T otal lntam•ible Asse1s 539.30 

Goodwill is non tax deductible and was allocated to the CGU "Busy lnfotech Private Limited". 

Acquisition• related costs: 

5 
5 

Basis of amorti.7..ation 
On strai(?ht line basis 
On s1rai1!111 line basis 

The Group had incurred INR 38. 79 towards acquisition related costs. These amounts have been included in other expenses in 1be consolidated statement or profit or loss for the year ended 31 March. 
2023. 

The operations of Busy Jnfotech had been consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of tlle Group from 0 I April. 2022 for convenience purposes as the transactions between 01 April. 2022 
and 05 April. 2022 were not material. 

During the previous year. the Group had finalised the purchase price allocation for this acquisition. which resulted in increase in net working capi1al by INR 29.20. decrease in Right of Use assets by 
INR 0.07. increase in deferred tax liability INR 4.62 and increase in non current liabilities by INR 9.14 with corresponding impact of decrease in value of goodwill by lNR I 5.37 to U\'R 4,122.34 basis 
cenain revised infonnation. 

In addition to the purchase consideration, initially INR 28 was payable as on acquistion date to certain Business Advisors over a two-year period. which has beeo renegotiated and reduced to INR 23. 
Payment orthis amount is contingent upon these service providers continuing to be the advisors of the Group during the stipulated period mentioned in the agreement. Out of the total agreed amount, 
INR 23 has been dischwged upto 31 March 2024. 

b) Acquisition of Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Fol""mcrly known as F inlite Technologies Private Limited) 

On 25 March. 2022. the Group had signed Share subscrip1ion and Share purchase agreement (SSSPA) for acquiring 51.09% equity interest in Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited (Formerly 
known as Finlite Technologies Private Limited) by way or purchase of 2,147 equity shares from exisiting shareholder or Livckeeping for a consideration or lNR 11 0 and by subscribing 6.843 fresh 
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) for lNR 350. Livekeeping is engaged in the business of providing technology related services, web development and mobile applications along with 
other services. Company is the owner of'Live keepking'. a mobile application that allows users to access their Tally data. This investment is in line wi1h 1hc Company's long tenn objective or offering 
various Software as a Service ('SAAS') based solutions for businesses. 

The acquisition consummated on 23 May. 2022 and the Group had paid JNR 459. 74 in cash. As pan of the acquisition. the Group had committed to Buy-out the remaining share from the promoter or 
Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited on specified dates in a manner stipulated under the SSSPA. Accordingly. the fair vaJue of remaining consideration payable to promoters of Livekeepiog 
Technologies offNR 321.27 was recognized by the Group as deferred consideration and the acquisition was accounted as per amicipated-acquisition method. 

The total purchase consideration of lNR 781.0 I was allocated based on ma.nagemcm estimates to the acquired assets and liabilities as follows: 

Par1iculars As at 31 Mn\' 2022 
Net workine caoital (lncludinc. cash oflNR 346.1 millions} 347.47 
Deferred 1ax liabilities(Net) 14.18) 
Prooeny, olant and eouipmcnt 0.40 
ln tanPible assets 

TechnoloRv 17.40 
Goodwi ll 419.92 
Purchase Consideralion 781.01 

The table below shows the values and lives of intangible assets recognized on acquisition: 

Amount Life (Years) 
Technolo, 17.40 5 
T otal Intannible Assets 17.40 

Goodwill is non tax de-ductible and was allocated to the CGU "Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited" 

Acquisition-related costs: 

Basis of amortb..ation 
On strai h1 line basis 

The Group had incurred L\lR 1.91 towards acquisition related costs. These amounts have been included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March. 
2023. 

During the previous year. the Group bad finalised the purchase price allocation for this acquisition. which resulted in decrease in net working capital by INR 0.45 and increase in deferred tax liability 
INR 0.0 I with corresponding impact or increase in value of goodwill by INR 0.46 to INR 420.38. 

The operations oflivekeeping Technologies have been consolidated in the financial statements of the Group from 31 May. 2022. 



lndlaMART lnlrrMESII Limited 
Notl'S to Consolidated Financial Statements for t he yc-ar ended JI March 2014 
(Amoums in INR mtlhon, unless olhrTWISt' s1attd) 

3S: Group Information 

lnfonnation about subsidiaries and associates 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidiaries and associates lis1ed in the table below: 

Name 

Information about subsidiaries 
Hello Trade Online Private Limited 
Tradczeal Online Private Limited 
Tolexo Online Private Ltd 
Pay With Indiamart Private Limited 
Busy lnfotech Priva1e Limited 
Livekeeping Technologies Private Limited 

Information about associates 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 
Truckhall Private Limiled 
Shipway Technology Private Limited 
Agillos E•Commerce Private Limited 
Edgewise Technologies Priva1e Limited 
IB Monmaro Private Limited 
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited (w.e.f03 November 2022) 
Adansa Solutions Private Limited (w.c.f06 April 2022) 

36 Additional iofonnatlon 

Principal activities 

Business facilitation services 
Business facilitation services 
Cloud based solution for SMEs 
Payment facilitalion 
Software and apps service providing company 
Software and apps service providing company 

Software and apps service providing company 
Software and apps service providing company 
Software and apps service providing company 
Software and apps service providing company 
Software and apps service providing company 
E•Commcrcc company 
Software and apps service providing company 
Software and apps service providing company 

Country of incorporation 

India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 

India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 
India 

¾ interest 
Asal A5at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

100.00 100.00 
100.00 100.00 
100.00 100.00 
100.00 100.00 
100.00 100.00 
51.01 51.01 

27.45 27.45 
31.20 25.02 
26.00 26.00 
26.23 26.23 
26.01 26.01 
26.70 26.00 
25.08 25.01 
26.01 26.01 

Net Assets, I.e., total assets minus 
IOlal liabllitits 

Share In profit and lou Share in other Compreheosh·e income- Share lo total Comprehrnsh·e income 

Name of the entity In the group 

Parenl 
lndlamart l ntermc:sh Limited 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 
For the year ended 31 March 2024 

For the year meted 31 March 2023 

Subsidiaries 
Tolexo Online Pri\'ate Limited 
Balance llS at 31 Mirch 2024 
Balance as at 31 March 202~ 
For tht" year ended 31 Man;h 2024 
For the year ended 31 March 2023 

Hello Trade Online P,.·t Ltd 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 
Balance as at 31 March 202J 
For the year ended 31 March 2024 
For the year ended 31 March 2023 

Tradczeal Online P\1 Ltd 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 
Balance as at 3 I March 2023 
For tht" year ended 3 I March 2024 
Fortheycarendt'dJI March.2023 

Pay with l ndlarnart Private Limitrd 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 
For the year ended J I ~farch 2024 
For the year cndtd 31 March 202J 

Busy lnfotech Private Limited 
Balance as at 3 I Marc.b 2024 
Balance as at 31 March 202J 
For the year ended 31 March 2024 
For the year ended 31 March 2023 

LivekttpinJ! Technolo)!ies Private Limited 
Balance as a1 31 March 2024 
Balance as at 3 I March 2023 
Fortheyearendtd 31 March 2024 
For1~yearendcd31 March2023 

Lh·ekctpi111,: Private Limited 
Balance as at JI March 2024 
BalanCf' as at 3 I March 2023 
For the year eodcd 31 March 2024 
For 1hr year ended 3 I March 202J 

As •;, of 
consolidatrd 

net assets 

19.56% 
81.80% 

•2.14% 
-1.59% 

0.00% 
0.()()% 

6.99% 
5.29% 

0.03% 
0.02% 

3.10% 
2.31% 

1.04% 
1.27% 

0.00% 
0 .00% 

INR 
million 

17,703.42 
20,644.10 

(477.09) 
(400.51) 

0.15 
0.21 

1.555.41 
1,334.20 

5.66 
6.03 

690.06 
582.86 

231.27 
319.99 

O.Q2 
0-07 

A.s % of 
consolidated 

profit and loss 

107.70% 

96.73% 

-2.28% 
-2.39% 

0 .00% 
0.00% 

6.58% 
15.78% 

-0.01¾ 
-0.04% 

3.18% 
3.66% 

-2.61% 
-0.99% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

INR 
million 

3,621.93 

2,721.86 

(76.66) 
(67.16) 

(0.06) 
(0.07) 

221.21 
444.09 

(0.)7) 
(1.15) 

l07.09 
103.00 

(87.91) 
(27.88) 

(0.04) 

As o/, or consolidated 
other comprchensh·e 

Income 

90.79% 

87.22% 

· l.19% 
0.59% 

0.00% 
0.()()% 

0.00% 
0.()()% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

-l.6J% 
12.61% 

12.04% 
-0.42% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

INR 
million 

(6.11) 

39.78 

0.08 
0.27 

0.1 I 
5.15 

(0.81] 
(0.19) 

As% of total 
comprehensive 

Income 

I07.7-'% 

96.58% 

-2.28% 
·2.34% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

6.59% 
IS.SJ% 

.Q.01% 
·0.04¾ 

3.19% 
3.80% 

·2.64% 
.0.98% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

INR 
milllon 

3,615.82 

2,761.64 

(76.58) 
(66.89) 

(0.06) 
(0.07) 

221.21 
444.09 

(0.371 
( 1.15) 

107.20 
108.75 

(88.72) 
(28.07) 

(0.041 



lndiaMART lnterMESII LimltOO 
Notes to Consolidated financial Slatcmtnts for tht year ended JI Marth 2014 
(Amounts in INR milhon1 unless 01hmv1se stated) 

36 Additional Information {Cont'd) 

Net Asscu, I.e .• total asseti minus 
Share In profit and loss Share In other Cornprchensh e Income Share In tolal Comprchcnshe incomt IOlal liabililits 

Name of the enllty In l he ~roup As •1. of 
INR As o/o or 

INR 
As •/4 of consolidated 

INR 
A5 'I• of total 

INR consolidated 
million consolidated 

million 
other comprcbcnsh·c 

milllon 
comprehcosh e 

million nel usefs profit a nd loss income lntomc 

A.uociatc (accouotini u per cquit}' mcthod} 
Simpl}' Y)'apar Apps Prl\'ate Limited 
Balance as at 3 I March 2024 2.26% 503.58 
Balance as at J 1 March 202:\ 2.59% 654.62 
For 1hr year ended JI March 2024 -4.49% (151.04) O.ll0% -4.50"/4 (151.04) 
For !he year roded 31 March 2023 -5.39¾ (151.55) 0.00% -5.30% (151.55) 

Tn.ickhall Private Limited 
Balance as at JI March 2024 0.58¾ 130.16 
Balance as at JI ~·larch 2023 OJI% 79.36 
Fortheycarendcd31 Marth2024 .U.72% (24.20) 0.00% -0.72% (24.20) 
For 1hr year ended 31 fvlarch 20H -0.77% (21.62) 0.00% -0.76% (21.62) 

Shipwa}' T«boolog}' Pri\'atc Limited 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.70% 156A4 
Balanceasat31 March2023 0.65% 164.42 
For the year ended 31 March 2024 -0.24% (7.98) 0.00% -0.24% (7.98) 
For the year ended 31 March 202J -0.40% (I l.J6) 0.00% -0.40% (11.36) 

A2lllo1 £-Commerce Pri,·a te Limited 
Balance as a1 3 I March 2024 0.95% 210.)8 
Balance as a1 31 March 2023 0.93% 235.62 
For the year ended 31 l\.farch 2024 -0.7.5% (15.24) 0.00% -0.75o/, (15.24) 
For the year ended 31 March 2023 -0.68% (19.27) 0.00% -0.67% (19.27) 

Ed2cwist Teehnolo2ies Pri,·att Limited 
Bahtn«' as at 31 March 2024 0.45% 101.15 
Balance as at 3 I March 2023 0.48% 121.50 
For the ytar ended 31 March 2024 -0.61% (20J5) 0.00% -0.61% (20.35) 
For the year ended 31 ~larch 2023 -0.42% (11.91) 0.00% -0.42% (11.91) 

18 M onoraro Private Llmilcd 
Balance as at JI March 2024 4.11% 915.22 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3.63% 915.59 
For the year cndtd JI March 2024 -4.10¾ (1]7.73) 0.00% -4.IO% (137.73) 
For the year ended 31 !\larch 202J -4.J4¾ (122.0IJ 0.00% -4.27% (122.0IJ 

J\tobisy Tcthnologles Pri,·alt Limilcd (w.d 03 No,·cmbcr 1021) 
Balance flS al 31 March 2024 1.83% 406.56 
Balance as at 31 Match 202J 1.80% 454.36 
For the >Ut ended 31 March 2024 -1.42% (47.80) 0.00% -1.42% (47.80) 
For the year endOO 3 I ~larch 2023 -0.34¾ (9.54) 0.00% -0.33¾ (9.54) 

Adansa Solutions Pri,,atc Limited (w.e.f 06 Ap ril 2022) 
Bal an~ as a1 31 March 2024 0.53% 118.18 
Balance as al 3 I Match 2023 0.50% 126.01 
For the year ended 31 March 2024 -lU.l¾ (7.8)) 0.00% ·0.2'.1% (7.8)) 
For the year endtd 31 March 2023 -0.41% (11.49) 0.00% -0.40% (11.49) 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 100.00¾ 22,250.57 
Balanu as at '.I I March 2023 100.00% 25,238.4) 
For 1he year ended 31 March 2024 100.00% 3,363.06 100.00% (6.73) 100.00% 3,356.33 
For the year ended 31 March 2023 100.00% 2,813.90 100.00% 45.61 100.00% 2,859.51 

Adjustment a rb ln2 out of consolidation 
Balance as at 3 I March 2024 (4,889.4)) 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (4,653.51) 
For the year ended JI March 2024 (23.53) (0.08) (2).61) 
For the year ended 31 March 2023 24.37 (0.55) 23.82 

To1a1 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 17,361.14 
Balance as at 31 ~·larch 2023 20,584.92 
Forthr)-rarcodn:t31 li..farch2024 3,)39.53 (6.81) 3,332.72 For the )'C'3f roded 31 March 2023 2,838.27 45.06 2,883.3) 



lndiam■rl lnltrmcsh Llmltc-d 
Notes 10 Coosolid11C'd f1n■nti■I f,;111cmmls for lhl" )Hr cndrd 31 M■rch 2024 
(Amounts in 1NR million, unless othcN1isc st.iteJ) 

37 Contl ng,nl li1hili1lc:1 ■nd CQfllmhmmls 

•) ConliDRC11l li1bilitie1 

(i) lnC(lnlc•tlx dml.lfld (n:fo-r nr,tes (3) and (b) b.:low) 
SCl'\icc ta,i:1 Gs·1 di.'1l13DJ (rcfor notes (c) hc[o11.•) 

Asif 
31 M■rch 2024 

30.'.! 68 
15.38 

"'" 31 M■rcb 2023 
30168 

15.JH 

(a) hi n::spcct of /\ss..:ssnK:Dt )'t!aT ~16-17. a demand ll•as raiSl.'J on Tok xc, Onlme Pmate hmit.:J due to add1llon ofmcomc rclatm~ to rec:cipu: <•r S1.«cunu1.-s premium ap1nst Ware al101ment n1,1de lil b1d1aMART 
b:itt."TME.",1-i llmn.'d and accor..linflY the los.s,..-s to be cam,:d fvrward hy T ole,\o On hoc Pm.11,,:: limacd haw been ttduu:d from INR 7 I 9 ~ to INR 48.'.!.07 ( Ta~ imr,-ict (n .'.!5 J 7°r INR 59 69) The ma lier 1s pmdtni: with 
C'IT(Appc.1ls) lukxv Onlml' Pm-ate limut.'d 1s contcst1n~ the dcm.1ml and lhe ounagelll<.-nt bclic\'CS that its pc,sit1on is rossihlc to be upheld rn thc afll'Cllate process Nv lilx CXfll-'1lSC has b...-...-n acaui."d UI lhc consolit.la.k'\I 
financial statem .. 'llts for ta.,i: dmJMd rais..-d 

{b) tn respect of ASS..'SS!lk.'flt )~ 1017-18. a dt-'1lWld of INK 242 99 was raiwd on lole;,.o Online Pmatc limited due 10 addilKln of mconff.! rct:iun~ to rcceiptS nf sccuriues premium against sharc altou11ent nl3dc 10 
tndiaMART lntcrMESII Limited. The Company is contesting the d..:ruand and the ruanai:1..'tUC"nt bdi1.."\~ that its position is possible 10 he urbeld in the appdla1e process No ta.,i: e:,,;p,:nsc- ha.~ bc...-n accrued 1n lhe COD$t'llid3ted 
financial st.ttcnients for t.:u dc:m.and rai.'i<.-J. 

(c) Pursuanl to the scmcc lax audit oflndiaman in1cnnesh Limited for thl.' financial )'¢31 WIJ-14 to 201 7-18 (i.e.upto JO Junc 2017), a demand bas bix.-n raik.-d on non-p,a)Tl'k.~t ofS1.T\icl.' ta.\ under rule 6(3)ofCCK. 2004 
on "Net gain on 53.le orcum.-nl im-esun..,11s"oflNR 15.38. ]be Company hu already rucordcd the pro\'ision for lhe s;sid amount in the books of accounts in the financial )'1.'.11' .'.!019-20. The Compony•as contesting the 
aforesaid mentioned dcnund against w mmiSSJoner (Appeals). During the r,rC\1ous )'Car, lhc order has bc\>n recei\"td n:jcctini lhc aJ)f'Cal and 101pMing 100•. renaltyorlNR 15.38. lbe C:(lmpany has fi led the appeal before 
Tribunal against the order, and the ffiMilgement bdic-.'CS that the Company's position in the ouner will be tenable. 

(ii) On 1:cbruary 28. 2019. a jud5?ruent of lhe !'.iupr..,nc Coun of India intt-rprelin,: ccrt.lin statutory 1.kfmcd contribution obliJalions of employees and emplo)\.TS alt~"red hist<'rical undcrstandinrs of such obligations. 
extending: them to co\'cr additional portions oflhe employee's rncoml.'. llowcwr, the judcn\Cl'.II isn't cxplici1 if such in1erprcta1ion may htive T1..1rospccti1'\: application r(SUhine in increas,,'d rontribution for past and future 
)'1!3n for ccn.ain eu1ployocs of th..: Group. The Group. based 011 an internal ass..'SSS11lt.'lll, eo.aluated that there are DUO"K."Tous intcrpreunh-e ch.1lleni!cs on the rell'\)SJ)OC\h\' applic.ation or the judpnent 11.hich results in 
impr.3C1icahili1y in estim:nion of and timing ofpa)'IJlctll and amount in\'Qh-00. As 3 result or lack of implemcntati<1n guidance and interpn.:t.atiw cballcng._-s in1\lh-cd, lhe Gro1Jp i~ unahlc to n:liabl>· estimate the amount 
inniln.xi. Accordinj!ly, the Group shall e1-aluate thc amount ofpm1ision, if any, on furtht-rclarity oflhe abon: m.ittL·r 

(iii) llle Group is inwl\'cd in l'arious lawsuits. claim_~ and PfOCcedioJS that arise in the ordma,y course orbusincss. the 0IJICOrue of which is inhercflll)' w1cert.ai11. Some of these 11\3\ters include spt'(ulati1~ and frimlous 
claims for substantial or indctmn.ina1e amounts of damages. The C'rroup records a liabili1y ~hen ii is bolh probable that a loss bas bc...-n incurred and the amount can he reasonably estimated Significant judgment is required 
to detr..Tminl! both probabilily and the estimated amount. The Group w.i C11i'S theso= pro1isions and adjusts thc.'iC pro1isions a,coonlin1Jy to rcnoct the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulinj!S, ad1icc of legal coun5t!!. anJ 
updated infomiation. lhe Group bdit"I~ that the amoun1 or estin1.1blc range of reasonably possible los.s with respect 10 loss contin1cncic-s for legal and othl.,- contingencies will not, eithr..-r indilidually or in the ag~gatc, 
haw a material ad1~ ell'..:ct on its buWlen. financial position, l'ts\llL~ or c35h flows oflhc Gruup as at 31 March 20.'.!4. 

(ii') 'lbe lndian Parliament J1as apr,ro1\.-J the Code on Social Security, 20::!0 which u·ould llufl,lC-1 the contributions by the Group to~•ards r n)\idcnt Fund and Gratuity. Theeffec1he date from u•hich the changes arc 
applie.1blc is )""I to be notified and thc final rules 3re )\.'110 be notified. Th!!Group wilt carry out an e1-alua1ion of the impact and rcoorJ lhe s.arue in the financial statements in lhe p,:riod in which lhe (ode b..'Comes erfr..-ctin: 
and the related rules arc nolilied. 

b ) C■plt■I ■nd other commllmtnh 
- As at 31 1,,!arch :'.!024, the Group has INR 8.39 capital commitment (31 March 2013: Nil) 

38 lnvcslmrnl in ■ssocl■ltt 

lbc Group has in1-estn~t in associates and the ag{!fl:g.ale summarised financial infonnat1on in rcsptxt of the Group's associates accounted for using the 1..-quity method isas below: 

Cam.in~ ,-..l1Je of the Ciroup's intt.'T\'SI in associates 
The Group's share in loss for lhe year in associatt-s 

39 St>bcmc of Am■IR■muion 

:\I March 2024 
'.!,541.67 
(403.94) 

l l M■uh "'0"'3 
2,751.48 
(379.05) 

A comrosite schenk! ofan~lµma tion (~the SchcmcM) amongs! wholly owned subsidiaries Busy lofot .. 'Ch Pri\'ate Limited ( "Busy ~ or ~Transr~-ror Company I"), Hello Trade Online Pri1-:1tc Ijmitcd (Mllcllo" or "lT3Jlsbor 
Company 2~). Tote.,i:(1 Online Pri,-..1c limited (··Tolexo" or '"IJ'3Dsfcrcc Company") and thcir rcspc.;ti\'e shareholdt"TS and creditors under Section .:!JO to :23.'.! and other applicable pro,isions. ifan)'. oflhe Cornp,111i1..-s Act. 
201 3 (read with the Rules made thereunder) was apJlf\l\\.'\I by the Boord ofl)jr«tors oflhc respccti\'e comp.1ni .. -s in their meeting held on 28 M.trch 2024 

The J)l.~itioo for the Sch1,-n1e ll·as filed with National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLI) on MJrth 29, 2024. The Scheme is subjec1 to scrutiny by sututory authorities and other interested parties bcfon: NCLT c.umines ii 
Ii-om judicial and o,\.-rall fll-TSJ)C'Ctil'<!. Gh\.'11 thal the Scht--me will become effoctil'..: on fill in[!: ohhc NCLT ordi.,- with 1he Rcrislr.lr of Companies, the finandal imp.l(l of the Scheme 1s not incorporated in the financial 
statements of the Company for the financial )-eat ended March J I. 20~4. 

40 Addllion ■I Re11ul11on• lnfMm111lo11 

■) • Rel.■tiomhlp ¥1irb Strud:. orr tomp11niH 

l'he Group did not ba1"" any material lraOS.'.lCtions with companies struck offundl.-r Scc1ion .'.!48 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Scctio□ 560 of Comp<lllies Act, 1956 durinr lhe financial )'Car. 

b). R1lio1 

Ru io 

Current lh 1lo /In llme,) 
l)cbt•t qully R■tio{in time,) 

l>tbl Stn•lcc Co,·n-■gt }htlo (In limes) 

lnltrcsl Co,·n-.■ gc r■ lio (in 1lmcs) 

Tr■dc R«tin bln turno,·tt r■ tio (in tilut>~) 

Tr■dt pa~·•blc, curnon:r r■ lio(i□ limn) 

Net c■ piUII lurno,·cr r■tlo (In timcs) 

Ntt pront r■ llo(ln ,♦) 

Optr■ ling rron1 Mngin r■ tio (ln %) 

Return on C11pll11I , mplo)'C'd (ROCE) (In •;.) 

Return oo inn·t lmtol {ROI) (In o/•) 

Dtbl to EUrfDA (In lime,) 

1 l Tota1 debt rcprcsen1s lease liabilities. 

Numtr■ lor Dcnomlnalor 

Cum.'1ll As~•s Cum..'lll liabiliti<."S 
Total debt (reprcscnL~ lease l iabihties) Shareholder:\ equi1y 

Im . ~, .. , ,·i-...~1 w \ 

F..amine a,-ailahlc for debt scr.ice Od,i Scr,,icc {Ref.:r Nole J 
l tRefor Note::! hdo"'' l hclow) 
Profit b.:fore intcr,;sl. w. & l'inance cost 
ucerniooal i,~,n~ 

~~:t, a~~ ~'I:, attribut:iblc to equity ,\\"era~e Shareholder's f:..:ruily 

Net Credit salcsdurinj 1hc year A1V,1,:e trade Tl..'Ccivablc 

Otb(Te:..p.-nscs A1'1!r.1,:e trade payable 

Rcl'enue from 0J)l.-"'r.llions Working capital (Current Assets 
Cum:n1 liabilities) 

Netprtlfitaflcrl.l.'< Rc-.'l!nuc from operations 

Profit before intt--rcst. ta,i:, cxccrtional Re,-enue from operations 
items, other income and share in net 

llos~ .:_,~~ • 

EUTIDA (Refer Note 8 below) 

Eaminr before intcrc:.'t and taxes 

Revenue from op.T.ltion~ 

Capilal cmplo)\!d (Refer N<lte 4 
li-...,ow 

Income generated from mvestcd funds Awraie in,'Csted funds in 
(RefLT Nole 5 bclo11.·) ttcasury in,l!Stlll(-uts (Rcfl.T Note 

6 hclow) 

Tol.11 debts (represents lc;tSC liabilities EUrfl>A (Rcf1..T Note- 8 belo11.•) 
l ,n Ii L. .• , w) 

Current yn r 

0.02 

I0.92 

52.18 46.55 

17.60°'i, 

13.6::! 10.33 

10.44 12.85 

0.92 0.65 

27.19-o 

I 7.86~ 

4,52°0 

0.12 0.17 

32' ' 

2) F.arnin2 available fur debt SCf\ice ,. Net Profit after ta:,;cs + Non-cash operatinS? expenses like dc-precia1ion and 3nX•nir.illons + Interest+ other adiumncnts like ~in on s.1lc of Fixed assets, shared OOood exp,;nSC$ etc. 
3) lkbt Sc..'rlic-e • Lease Pa}111eots (lo!erest + Principal) 
4) Oinil.ll f:mplo)'Cd "' Total shareholder's equit)' + Deferred 1..1x liahilit)' + Lease liabilit.ics 
S) b1comc i:mcratcd from in,-ested funds'"' FVJl)Lµin on mutual funds. exchange traded funds, bonds.. debentures., units ofaltcmatiw inv~menl funds and in1estmcnt trusi + htt..'l'\'SI income from B.ink dcposils-+ 
Interest inco□11: on inter corporalc deposits 

6) Averaie inwncd funds in lle."\Sllry im\.'Sllncnts .. Al\:r:ll!C or(A1'Cra&C quarterlyopcnioe treasury inwstmrnlsand quanerlyclosing treasuryin1\--stmen1s #) 
f, Treasury Inw-stmcnts = Mutual funds. cxchanjle traded funds, OOnds, dcbl'ntures, uniliofaltcmauve im'Cstm .. >ill funds and in1,:stmcn1 truS1 + lnta. eorporato:dcposi1s + Uank deposits 
7) Average is cakulatini based (ID simpk a\'eragc of opening and closing balances. 
8) EBITDA stands for Profit bcforc interest. tax. deprecia1ion. aruonisalion, C.\Ccptional it1,i:1is and other income 

• Exnl,illljl\i<m where "arianCc! in ratio is more than '5~.t 

Dtbl Stnitf- Co\tf"IQc R■tio 

Due 10 increase in earnings and reduction in dcb1 

Tr■dc Rttf-h·■bln turnonr r•rlo (In llmc.s) 
lhc in~<:n::a-,;,.: in ratio i~on 31.'.COunl of dccrcasc m trade recc1\'ablcs as compared Ill prC\·fous )'Car. 

Ntt npit■ I turno,·cr r•llo(ln time,) 
On account ofincrcasc in lhc rc1~nuc for lhc ye.1r an doch:3SC: in the net •orking capi1al. 

Rtturn on Ctplt■I t>mplond (ROCEI (In % l 
Due to increase in earnings and reduc1ion in capital employed on account ofbuy back during 

Rtturn on ln,·~ 1m,n1 CROii 
Due to incr~ in income iencratcd from inwsuncnt by the company 

l)thl to U)ITDA (In limn) 
Due lO increase in carnin,:s & rcdu.:t1on in debt 



India mart Intermesb Limited 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 
(Amounls in INR million, unless 0!11erwise staled) 

41 Events after the reporting period 

{a) The Group has evaluated all the subsequent events through 30 April 2024, which is the date on which these consolidated financial statements were issued, and no events have occurred from the 
balance shee1 dale through that date except for maners that have already been considered in the consolida1ed fmancial statements. 

(b) Dividend 

Dividends paid during the year ended 31 Marci~ 2024 include an amount of Rs. 201- per equity share (pre bonus share issue of I I) lowards final dividend for the year ended 31 Marci~ 2023 
(Dividend paid during the year ended 31 March 2023 : Rs 2/per equity share). 

Dividend declared by the Company is based on Ute profil available for distribution. On 29 April 2024, the Board of Directors of Ute Company have proposed a fmal dividend of INR 201- per 
share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2024. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For B S R & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Finn Registration No. 101248W/\V. J00022 
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